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Agency mission

This scene of reclaimed mine land
typifies the results that can be
achieved through a shared commit-
ment to environmental protection.
Prior to mining, this operation in
Kentucky was covered with old spoil
pits and ridges left from a mid-1940s
operation. Today, after mining and
reclamation by the W.H. Bowlin Coal
Company, the site is productive farm-
land and tranquil ponds once again.

Both the mine operator and Kentucky
mine inspectors had the same goal --

remove the coal resource and reclaim
the land. In this case there was an
added reclamation incentive for them
because the site was a reminder of
mining as it was conducted in the
1940s, before the Surface Mine Law
was enacted. When we measure the
success of the law, the true test is the
on-the-ground condition. And
successful reclamation can only be
achieved when everyone involved
makes a commitment to ensuring that
the goal is met.

Protecting the environment during
coal mining and making sure the
land is reclaimed after the coal is
removed have

Regulating active mining is a
partnership between the states and
the Office of Surface Mining. States
have the primary responsibility for

Reclamation of lands mined and
abandoned before August 3, 1977, is
accomplished using funds collected
from tonnage-based fees paid by

been national permitting and inspecting the mining  active coal
requirements and reclamation, and the Office of producers.
since 1977, when Surface Mining establishes national Emergencies
the Surface performance and situations
Mining Control standards of danger to
and Reclamation and ensures public health,
Act (SMCRA) the states safety, and
was signed into meet a general
law. Making sure those requirements  uniform welfare are
are met is the responsibility of the level of given high
Interior Department’s Office of compliance. priority.
Surface Mining.
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Introduction

U.S. Department of the lnteriOr, Office of Surface Mining

1995 Annual Report

his report describes the opera-

tions of the Interior Department’s

Office of Surface Mining Recla-
mation and Enforcement (OSM) for
the period October 1, 1994, through
September 30, 1995 — Fiscal Year
1995'. The report combines the Office
of Surface Mining’s Annual Report to
Congress with its Annual Financial
Report, and was compiled to meet the
specific requirements of Section 706
of the Surface Mining Control and
Reclamation Act of 1977 (SMCRA)
and the Chief Financial Officers Act
of 1990. In addition, the report takes
the first steps toward including the
requirements of the Government
Performance and Results Act in the
annual report. The 1996 report will
combine all three of these statutory
requirements.

Building on the success of last year’s
annual report, the 1995 report is
presented in a similar format that will
make it easier for the general public
to use the information it contains.
This change is in response to public
demand for information about
Surface Mining Control and Reclama-
tion Act implementation and Office of
Surface Mining operations. Included
in this report are activities carried out
under several parts of SMCRA: Title
IV, Abandoned Mine Reclamation;
Title V, Control of the Environmental
Impacts of Surface Coal Mining; and
Title VII, Administrative and Miscel-
laneous Provisions. Surface Mining
Control and Reclamation Act respon-
sibilities of other bureaus and agen-
cies have been omitted. Those respon-
sibilities include Title III, State
Mining and Mineral Resources and
Research Institutes program, which
was administered by the U.S. Bureau
of Mines; Titles VIII and IX, the
University Coal Research Laborato-
ries and the Energy Resource Gradu-
ate Fellowships, which are adminis-

1. Throughout this document “1995” refers to
Fiscal Year 1995, unless otherwise noted.

tered by the Secretary of Energy; and
Section 406, the Rural Abandoned
Mine Program (RAMP), which is
administered by the Secretary of
Agriculture. Programmatic and
financial information about those
activities is reported directly to
Congress by the agencies responsible
for them.

This year’s annual report contains the
same tabular data found in Office of
Surface Mining annual reports
prepared since 1988. This facilitates
comparison of statistics from year to
year. Some of the tables have been
renumbered and others combined to
simplify use of the data presented.
(For example, state and federal
program tables have been combined
in response to many requests for an
easier way to compare this informa-

 tion.) Financial and accounting

information, which is presented in a
format similar to that of a traditional
corporate annual report, is contained
in the Financial Review section.

The Inspector General’s audit state-
ment, which gives the Office of
Surface Mining a “clean” audit
opinion of its financial reporting for
1995, is included at the end of the
financial section.

To meet the need for national and
state-by-state statistical data and the
growing demand for Office of Surface
Mining operational and financial
information, copies of the annual
report will be distributed to the
public upon request.

For information about Office of
Surface Mining activities, news
releases, and publications, or for
additional copies of this report,
contact:

Office of Communications
Office of Surface Mining
1951 Constitution Ave., N.-W.
Washington, D.C. 20240
(202) 208-2553

This productive pasture land in eastern Kentucky was once a coal mine. This resultis typical of most
mining and reclamation performed under the surface mining law. After mining was completed the land
was reclaimed and restored to long-term productive use. This is a dramatic difference from the post-
mining landscape before the surface mining law was passed in 1977.
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. l.etter to our constituents and customers

- Office of Surface Mining Director Robert J. Uram reviews 1995 and
| assesses the state of the agency.

hen the year ended, the Office
W of Surface Mining was more

effective than at any time in
its history. State regulatory and
abandoned mine land programs were
working better than ever, and we
were close to resolving many of the
major issues the states, industry,
citizens, and the Office of Surface
Mining had been unable to agree on
since the program began. However,
the 1996 budget process has brought
new challenges.

The 1996 budget still in process
would provide $269 million -- about
$23 million less than the President
requested. Late in 1995 the Office of
Surface Mining began to prepare for
serious 1996 budget reductions.
Layoff notices were given to 270
employees-- over 34 percent of the
agency’s staff -- and 70 vacant
positions

Office of Surface Mining Director Bob were
Uram (right) with Ernie Giovannitti, of .

the Pennsylvania Department of Envi- ab911shed.
ronmental Resources, and Bob and This was
Junior McKay at the McKay Coal Com- the

pany’s reclaimed Woodall Mine in Ohl, beginning

Pennsylvania. :
of a very

difficult time for the Office of Surface
Mining. We began closing offices in
the field. We lost many highly
qualified employees. We began to
change how we manage our remain-
ing resources. Fortunately, the Office
of Surface Mining’s reorganization
had shifted to a results-oriented
approach that is focused on on-the-
ground success. But severe budget
cuts will cause the Office of Surface
Mining to reduce or eliminate many
of the services it has been providing.

In 1996 we will focus on our priorities
to an even greater extent. We are
opening up our budget and strategic
planning processes to the states, the
industry, and to interested citizens.
This new approach reflects a more
accessible Office of Surface Mining
that wants to hear directly from its
customers about where we should be

applying our resources, how we can
improve our services, and how we
can more efficiently perform the
regulatory job Congress initiated. We
will still pursue our substantive
ongoing initiatives: acid mine drain-
age prevention, the Appalachian
Clean Streams Initiative, electronic
permitting, oversight re-engineering,
and Remining For Real!

We accomplished a great deal in
those high-priority areas during 1995.
For example, dozens of
state, federal, local, and
private-sector organizations
signed a Declaration of
Mutual Intent for Clean
Streams. We followed up
with stream clean-up
projects, advancement of
clean-up technology,
partnerships, public events,
and excitement and enthusi-
asm. Perhaps the best
demonstrations of our
progress are the completed
projects that have eliminat-
ed acid mine drainage and begun the
process of restoring clean streams in
Appalachia.

During 1995 the Office of Surface
Mining and the state regulatory
agencies have worked together to
make astonishing gains in reinforcing
our shared commitment. The “new”
Office of Surface Mining views the
states’ success as our success. We are
all in the business of seeing that
mined lands are reclaimed, and we
want to achieve on-the-ground
success at the lowest possible cost.

This year we have re-engineered
oversight from a process-driven
systemn to a results-oriented system.
We have substituted performance
agreements worked out by consensus
with each state for the Washington-
driven mandates of the past. We are
remolding the contentious Ten-day
Notice process into a system that

”SMCRA is

working -
Hore ejfectively
and ﬁiirly than

it ever has.”

truly respects state judgments and
ends intrusive federal second-
guessing while still providing service
to coalfield families. In many other
important areas of policy we are
working with the states to find state-
by-state solutions for state problems -
- a Utah solution for a Utah problem,
for example, and a Virginia solution
for a Virginia problem. And where
there is no problem, we don’t create
one. We are seeking to acknowledge
state and tribal successes while
respecting our primary
customers, without under-
mining the level playing
field, and with the under-
standing that to succeed,
we need each other. This is
a marked change from the
past. We are giving more
credit to the states, the
Tribes, and the coal indus-
try, and we are working
together to solve problems.
This shift is a key part of
the new Office of Surface
Mining. When all the
rhetoric is set aside, it is clear that
SMCRA is working -- more effective-
ly and fairly than it ever has -- and it
should not be changed to meet the
demands of individual interests.

All these things fit into the new
picture we are building for this
program -- a picture of people
working together to produce results
that will benefit everyone in the coal
mining states. This report discusses
the progress and problems we
encountered in 1995, and features a
few of the people who have helped
make the program a success. As you
read the report, I ask each of you to
join us in strengthening our shared
commitment to good reclamation, a
strong coal industry, and a safer and
more environmentally sound place
for coalfield families to live and work.

AR g/







Highlightsor1995

A summary of the actions and activities of the Office of Surface Mining

comparison of this year’s
Aprogress with that of the agen-

cy’s previous 18 years shows
that 1995 was one of the most suc-
cessful. Many problems that had
been pushed aside for years were
resolved, interaction with the states
was finally becoming positive, and

on-the-ground reclamation was better
than ever before. In short, 1995 was a
highly productive year because

. - o everyone
Livestock grazing is the principal land . lved
use in the West, where most land is  11VOIVe
reclaimed to rangeland. At this Mon- began
tanamine, reclamationincluded plant- working
ing native grass to reestablish the more
rangeland.

closely

together to achieve a common goal --
effective implementation of SMCRA.
But, it also became a very difficult
year as steps were taken to prepare
for the budget reductions of 1996.

Restructuring the Office of Surface
Mining

When the year began, the Office of
Surface Mining was in the final stages
of planning a reorganization that
shifted the agency's emphasis to
achieving on-the-ground results. This
reorganization was the result of
completely rethinking what would be
needed to make the Office of Surface
Mining more effective.

The process started in 1993 with
interviews and surveys designed to
solicit ideas from citizens, employees,
states, interest groups, and the coal
industry. These ideas became the
building blocks for a new mission
and vision statement that created a
foundation for the basic planning
process. The result was a top-to-
bottom restructuring and a shift to a
team-based work environment. A
management council formed in the
early stages of the reorganization has
become a team of senior managers
who are actively engaged in resolving
both day-to-day and long-term Office
of Surface Mining operational issues.

This management concept is repeated
at the regional level to include
working input from all employees.

Restructuring the Office of Surface
Mining decentralized many functions
and delegated decisionmaking to the
regional level. This put the responsi-
bility for making day-to-day deci-
sions close to the active mining
operations and abandoned mine land
reclamation projects. In addition,
many staff organizational changes
were made. For example, the number
of Senior Executive Service (SES) staff
was reduced from 11 to 6, and the
supervisor to employee ratio went
from 1/5 to 1/10.

Providing more open communica-
tion with our constituents

In today’s world, effective communi-
cation is vital to the success of any
organization. The Office of Surface
Mining had a history of ineffective
communication with its broad and
diverse customer groups
(i.e., citizens, state regula-
tors, the coal industry, and
interest groups). Turning
this problem around has
not been easy; however,
several important success-
es were achieved in 1995.

B The Applicant Violator
System was opened to the
public. Training was
provided so that the
public could access
information through
computer modems and
public terminals in Wash-
ington, D.C.; Pittsburgh,
Pennsylvania; and Lexington, Ken-
tucky. Public access allows coal
companies and other interested
parties to monitor records that could
affect the issuance of permits, while
enabling the Office of Surface Mining
to build a more open permit approval
process.

P roblems
that had

been pushed

aside for
years were

resolved.”

W The COALEX computer data base was
opened to the public. This data base
contains the full text of SMCRA and
all its amendments, a legislative
history of SMCRA, and all Office of
Surface Mining regulations (both past
and current). Computer access to this
data supports more substantive
public participation while providing
equal access to key data for all parties
affected by SMCRA.

B Office of Surface Mining activities and
audited financial statements are reported
to the public annually. The 1994
annual report combined the reporting
requirements of both SMCRA and the
Chief Financial Officers Act into one
document that was made available to
the public. This year the annual
report adds the first steps in meeting
the reporting requirements of the
Government Performance and
Results Act. Complete public access
to this information should result in a
better understanding of the Office of
Surface Mining’s strengths and
weaknesses. With this
understanding, the public
can provide feedback that
will enable the agency to
be more effective and
efficient, enabling it to
make needed improve-
ments while maintaining
areas of strength.

B A new advisory notice
format initiated. A violent
eruption, or “blowout,”
caused by pressurized
water inside the flooded
workings of an under-
ground coal mine in
Buchanan County, Virgin-
ia, killed a young woman and severe-
ly damaged her home and a nearby
state highway. To alert the coal
industry to this hazard, agency
Director Robert Uram issued an
advisory to state, regional, and
national coal mining associations
describing deadly mine blowout




October

November

December

January

February

September

hazards and asked for their coopera-
tion in safeguarding the public from
these dangers. The advisory also
asked the coal industry to join the
Office of Surface Mining in determin-
ing the best ways to identify existing
mines with blowout potential so these
accidents can be prevented in the
future.

This was the first time an advisory
format had been used by the Office of
Surface Mining. It provided a quick,
effective way to get this very impor-
tant message to everyone across the
country who had knowledge of mines
that could contain similar safety
hazards.

Office of Surface Mining Initiatives.
In 1995, significant success was
achieved on agency initiatives dealing
with acid mine drainage, electronic
permitting, shared oversight, clean
streams, and remining. An acid mine
drainage summit was planned to
bring experts from all parts of the
country together to focus on acid
mine drainage prevention. The
Appalachian Clean Streams Initiative
was the catalyst responsible for
bringing diverse public and private
entities together to work on improv-
ing on-the-ground conditions in acid-
polluted streams. Electronic permit-
ting moved from the testing to the
application stage, with significant
savings in efficiency. The oversight
process was re-engineered; the new
shared process will be fully imple-
mented in 1996. Also, the Remining
For Real! initiative was started, and
the first site-specific case to eliminate
regulatory barriers to remining began
at a proposed mine site in Virginia.

A major setback for the Clean
Streams initiative occurred when the
Congress failed to provide direct
donation authority to the Office of
Surface Mining for carrying out on-
the-ground acid mine drainage clean-




up projects. Donation authority
would have provided the mechanism
for citizens, interest groups, and
industry to earmark donated funds
for constructing clean-up facilities.
This request will be made again in
1996.

o

Regulation of mining and reclama-
tion. On-the-ground conditions in
the coal fields continue
to show an improvement
in regulating mining and
reclamation. Major
accomplishments in 1995
were achieved in three
areas that had gone
unresolved for many
years:

W [ndian lands programs
began to move toward
primacy. The Office of
Surface Mining and the
coal resource Indian
tribes formulated a plan
that will enable the tribes
to regulate their lands just as the
primacy states do. Funding for the
development of the tribal programs
and regulations was included in the
1996 Bureau of Indian Affairs budget.
Cooperation with the tribes has
provided both tribal sovereignty and
accomplishment of the Office of
Surface Mining’s SMCRA mandate.

M New rules were promulgated to fulfill
the congressional mandate to help states
protect private property from damage by
underground coal mines. These rules
fill a gap in the previous subsidence
rules by requiring coal operators to
protect the homes, churches, and
water supplies of coalfield residents
from damage caused by underground
coal mining.

M A negotiated rulemaking process began
on coal refuse disposal. Initial work
resulted in establishing a process that
provided a committee to reach

for the Clean

occurred when the

Congress failed to

ymvide donation

authority."

consensus on the issue and use the
recommendations to form the basis
for a proposed rule. Although this
activity was cancelled due to 1996
budget reductions, the Office of
Surface Mining will continue regular
rulemaking for this issue.

Abandoned Mine Land Reclamation
continued to make significant

o Pprogress in eliminating
health and safety
problems from past
mining. An important
1995 highlight in this
area includes:

Streams initiative

B Twenty-eight states and
three Indian tribes joined
the Office of Surface
Mining in signing a
formal declaration of
shared commitment to
public service, teamwork,
responsibility, and
integrity in carrying out
the abandoned mine land
reclamation program of the surface
mining law. This milestone federal/
state agreement is expected to
improve one of the most successful
environmental programs in the
country. This kind of shared commit-
ment is the way government should

New performance-based
oversight begun in 1995
established a policy that
focused onoutcomes and
results, rather than the
process. The Office of
Surface Mining bases its
evaluation of state pro-
grams on specific mea-
surements of SMCRA
performance standards.
Using this method of eval-
uation, the states' on-the-
ground effectiveness can
be determined. Here Of-
fice of Surface Mining In-
spector Morris Elliott talks
with Darrell Maunder, Su-
pervisor of Environmen-
tal Engineering at the
Jacobs Ranch Mine in
Wyoming.

work -- with an understanding
between parties that is mutually
supported and mutually respected.

Refocusing resources for 1996 in
light of the proposed budget. Based
on budget cuts voted by Congress in
August and September, the Office of
Surface Mining began to prepare for
budget reductions. In August, a
Reduction In Force (RIF) was initiated
that severely impacted the staff
capability of the organization.
Financial and staff reductions result-
ed in closing two field offices and two
area offices; eliminating the proposed
Grand Junction, Colorado, office;
setting a near-moratorium on techni-
cal training for state and tribal
personnel; and reducing customer
services, including the Technical
Information Processing System
(TIPS), the Applicant Violator Sys-
tem, the Abandoned Mine Land fee
collection and compliance program,
and the emergency reclamation
program. The cuts were not support-
ed by the Department of the Interior
or the Office of Surface Mining. The
Reduction In Force and the reduc-
tions in program service levels were
carried out only in response to
specific congressional action.







© Atthis Kentucky mine reclamation,
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Finance and administration

A report on the budget, management, and operations of the Office of Surface Mining

ment during coal mining and

making sure the land is reclaimed
after the coal is removed have been
required by the Surface
Mining Control and
Reclamation Act (SMCRA).
Making sure those require-
ments are met is the
responsibility of the Office
of Surface Mining.

Since 1977 protecting the environ-

Functionally, the agency is
organized around the two
principal requirements of
the surface mining law:
regulating active coal
mining and reclaiming
abandoned mines.

Organization of the Office of
Surface Mining

On May 1, 1995, a new organizational
structure for the Office of Surface
Mining became operational. The new
organization, which Congress ap-
proved in December 1994, is consis-
tent with the streamlining goals of
Vice President Gore’s National
Performance Review. The reorgani-
zation incorporates new ways to
accomplish the agency’s mission
more effectively and efficiently.

Completion of the reorganization has
resulted in many benefits for the
Office of

the rock-lined drain adjacent to the Surface
hollow fill directs surface water to  Mining: the
the permanentimpoundmentatthe . mber of
base of the structure.

Senior
Executive Service and supervisory
positions were reduced; duplicate
and overlapping jurisdictions within
the Office of Surface Mining were
eliminated; and operational decisions
were moved from Washington, D.C,,
to the field. '

With key functions and processes
decentralized and re-engineered, and
with a flatter, more field-oriented

reo ;;ganization

incmyomtes
HeW Ways to
accom}ﬂish the

llﬂ(’llf)".\'

mission.”

organization, the Office of Surface
Mining is positioned to reach a higher
level of success. The new organiza-
tion improves the level of customer
service -- particularly to
coal field citizens and the
coal industry, our primary
customers. Promoting
involvement and teamwork
through a shared commit-
ment with states, industry,
and the public is at the core
of improving both custom-
er service and on-the-
ground results.

The principal elements of
the reorganization includ-
ed:

meeeed M Establishing a region-
based structure that organizes coal-
producing states into three regions
with similar environmental condi-
tions. This makes it easier to apply
an ecosystem approach to resolving
issues. Regional coordinating centers
have been established in Pittsburgh,
Pennsylvania; Alton, Illinois; and
Denver, Colorado.

M Functions that overlapped or could
be more effectively handled by other
offices were transferred. This includ-
ed eliminating two Directorates: Field

Operations and Human Resources
Management.

M Existing functions were combined
into more efficient management
groupings. Specifically, the Assistant
Directorate for Finance and Account-
ing, the Assistant Directorate for
Information Systems Management,
and the Assistant Directorate for
Administrative Services were com-
bined into one office, the Assistant
Directorate for Finance and Adminis-
tration; Congressional Liaison, Public
Affairs, and the Correspondence and
Issues Management office into one
office, the Office of Communications;
and the Budget Office, Planning and
Analysis, and Management Control
were combined into one office, the
Office of Strategic Planning and
Budget.

B The Eastern and Western Support
Centers in Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania,
and Denver, Colorado, were abol-
ished. An area office planned for
Grand Junction, Colorado, was not
opened due to reduced 1996 funding,
and the inspection, enforcement, and
oversight responsibilities for Colo-
rado and Utah were transferred from
the Albuquerque Field Office to the
Western Regional Coordinating
Center.

Organization

Director

Deputy Director

Otfice of Strategic Planning and Budget I

Appalachisn Regionat

Program Support
Coordinating Genter

Directoraie

Mid-Continent Regioal
Coordinaling Center

Western Faglonal Finance and
l Goordinating Center I | “‘E‘,’.",‘.’;‘:;’,:‘,':"

l

Fegulatory

Field Otfices
Suppart

| Fisid Offices |

Compliance
Management

I Flald Offces I
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B
g
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Office Locations

Headquarters
Coordinating Center
Field Office
Area Office

B Due to 1996 funding reductions,
offices in Kansas City, Missouri;
Springfield, Illinois; Logan, West
Virginia; and Notris, Tennessee, were
closed. As of September 30, 1995, the
Office of Surface Mining consisted of
headquarters in Washington, D.C,
three regional coordinating centers,
11 field offices, and 9 area offices.
The Office of Surface Mining also
maintains a financial management
office in Denver.

This reorganization was an important
step in the overall development of the
comprehensive strategic management
plan to guide the Office of Surface
Mining for the next five years.

Budget and Appropriations

- The Department
of the Interior
and Related
Agencies Appro-
priations Act of
1995 (Public Law
103-332) appro-
priated
$109,695,0007
from the General
Fund for the
Office of Surface
Mining’s regula-

Ofttice of Surface Mining

Budget 1978-1995

2. Public Law 103-332 included a .191
percent ($559,202 for the Office of Surface
Mining) across-the-board reduction to all
domestic program appropriations, and Public
Law 104-19 included a travel and administra-
tive cost rescission ($138,000 for the Office of
Surface Mining).

10

tory and enforcement activities. The
1995 Regulation and Technology
appropriations included the follow-
ing provisions:

Performance bonds forfeited under
Section 509 of SMCRA can be used to
reclaim lands where the mine opera-
tor did not meet all the requirements

tions, $611,857 was obligated for
reclamation in 1995.

State regulatory program grants were
funded at $51,562,330, which was
$98,670 less than 1994.

In addition, $182,386,0002 was
appropriated from the Abandoned
Mine Reclamation Fund ($7,721,000
less than 1994), and up to 20 percent
of the funds recovered from delin-
quent debts was authorized for
continuing collection of those debts.
In 1995, the Office of Surface Mining
spent $938,907 to collect approxi-
mately $10.7 million in delinquent
AML fees and delinquent AML audit
bills. The following provisions were
included in the AML appropriation:

State reclamation grants were funded

of SMCRA and the permit. In 1995,
performance bond forfeitures re-

at $135,733,640, which was $84,360
less than 1994.

ceived and credited to this account

totaled $1,438,276.
$82,540 of prior-year
bond forfeitures was
obligated for recla-
mation in 1995. No
obligations were
incurred from 1995
receipts.

Federal civil penal-
ties and related
interest collected
under Section 518 of
SMCRA can be used
to reclaim lands
abandoned after
August 3, 1977. In
1995, $40,198 in
collections for late
penalties and admin-
istrative costs were
transferred to the
U.S. Treasury general
fund and collections
available for reclama-
tion totaled $330,592.
Of current- and
prior-year collec-

TABLE 1

Regulation & Technology
State Regulatory Grants $ 51,562,000

22,594,000

$ 51,661,000

Regulatory Program Operations 21,732,000

Tech. Services, Training &

General Administration
Executive Diraction [2,027,000]

[5,174,000]

[2,082,000]
[5,456,000]

Administrative Support

2

Sﬂb(otal 109,695,000 110,562,000

Abandoned Mine Reclamation Fund
State Reclamation Grants 135,734,000 135,818,000
6,453,000 6,539,000

24,829,000

2

erator Assistance Program
General Administration )

Executive Direction 00 )
i ,000] [21339,000]
General Services {2,811,000] [3,010,000]
Subtotal 182,386,000 190,107,000
Kentucky Emergency Grant (Activity 2F) 7,200,000

Total $292,081,000
*Does not include Bond Forfeiture and Civil Penalty collections

$307,859,000




Federal emergency program expendi-
tures were limited to $11,000,000,
which was $118,000 less than 1994.

No more than 25 percent
of total new appropriated
funds available for
emergency reclamation
projects could be used in
any one state.

All appropriations
provisions were met.
A

Financial System:

Reorganimtion :

was an imyortant
step in the overall

deveb}zment of the

ing accounting information, this
system tracks all federal enforcement
actions and civil penalty debt issued
by the Office of Surface Mining.

During 1995, the Office
of Surface Mining’s
Budget Module, a
subsidiary accounting
system that tracks
budget authority by
program and office, was
enhanced to allow
decentralization of
budgetary decisions and
to reflect the real-time

Electronic Improve- com}/reh eHsive status of budget authori-
ments ty. These enhancements
The Office of Surface . , " allow for greater flexibil-
Mining continues to 3Utlf(’ﬂ iy lan. ity while maintaining the
apply the latest technolo- ’ highest level of system
gy to enhance its finan- integrity.

cial management.

Automated procurement and budget-
ing systems have been upgraded in
the accounting system, and those
systems provide on-line access to
accurate, up-to-the-minute financial
management information. Improve-
ments added in 1995 include:

The second phase of the Grant
Information Financial Tracking
System (GIFTS) was completed on
September 30, 1995. This system is a
subsidiary accounting system that
supports the recording of each
detailed grant award, expenditure,
disbursement, and programmatic
information. The work this year
incorporated changes brought about
by the revised “simplified” aban-
doned mine land grants and stream-
lined financial process of awarding
and disbursing grant funds.

The Civil Penalties Accounting and
Information Database (CPAID), the
Office of Surface Mining's interim
replacement system for the Collection
Management Information System
(CMIS), became operational in
October 1995. In addition to provid-

Dale Martin, a Buffalo Coal Company foreman,
is a mine operator whose pride in his work can be
seen onthe ground. With over 20 years of mining
experience, he is responsible for the Difficult
Creek Mine (shown below) overlooking the North
Branch of the Potomac River. Emulating the
company president's slogan of "going a step
beyond the requirements," he supervises mining
and reclamation that is nationally recognized as
outstanding. He is quick to say “the little extra
effortittakes to separate toxic strata can really be
seen in the improved quality of the water.”

At the Difficult Creek Mine in West Virginia, acid-producing rock material is excavated from the active
pit and hauled to a point high in the highwall backfill. This "high-and-dry" approach seeks to minimize
acid drainage production by keeping the material out of the water-accumulating part of the backfill near
the pit floor. Without water, acid drainage is prevented.




The Investment Module, which
automated the purchase, redemption,
accounting, reporting, and internal
control features of the Office of
Surface Mining’s daily investment in
U.S. Government Treasury-based
securities, was automated in 1995.
The implementation of the Invest-
ment Module in June 1995 followed
twelve months of internal develop-
ment. In accordance with the objec-
tives of the National Performance
Review, the Investment Module
achieved the desired result of provid-
ing an efficient, effective, and less
costly investment process.

The Synergistic Acquisition Tracking
Information Network (SATIN) was
fully operational throughout the
Office of Surface Mining
during 1995. SATIN is a
system that consolidates
budgeting and account-
ing with the procurement
process. Consolidation
improves organizational
accountability and
greatly increases procure-
ment efficiency.

Fee Compliance and
Debt Management
Thirteen offices through-
out the coal-producing
regions of the country
conduct on-site fee
compliance audits of coal companies.
In 1995, 400 audits and audit-related
projects identified $7.5 million in
under-reported or non-reported
Abandoned Mine Reclamation Fund
fees, interest, and penalties. The
findings covered about 17.6 million
tons of coal.

The Office of Surface Mining pursues
delinquent debtors who owe civil
penalties for mine site environmental
violations and unpaid Abandoned
Mine Reclamation Fund fees, includ-
ing unpaid fees resulting from Office
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“The office of
Surface Mining
has received five

consecutive

lmqlmliﬁed andit

oyinions."

of Surface Mining compliance audits.
Collections and year-end debt for
1995 are shown in Table 2. Delin-
quent debt information is retained in
the Applicant Violator System to
prevent violators from receiving new
mining permits until their accounts
are settled. Of the $79.1 million 1995
year-end debt balance, $42.4 million
(54 percent) is principal. The remain-
der represents interest, late payment
penalties, and administrative charges
on unpaid balances.

When agency avenues of debt
collection have been exhausted,
delinquent debts are referred to the
Department of the Interior's Solicitor
for appropriate legal action or
bankruptcy proceedings. The Office
of Surface Mining had
mmll $69.1 million in delin-
quent debt at the end of
1995. Of this amount
$46.8 was referred to the
Solicitor, $15.9 was
referred to the Depart-
ment of Justice, and $6.4
was being pursued by
the Office of Surface
Mining. Debt at the
Solicitor's office consists
of $22.3 million involv-
ing bankruptcy proceed-
ings and $24.5 million
for litigation.

Audited Financial Statements

Since 1990, the Office of Surface
Mining has prepared an Annual
Financial Statement after the close of
each fiscal year, as required by the
Chief Financial Officers Act of 1990
(Public Law 101-576). These state-
ments are audited by the Department
of the Interior’s Office of Inspector
General to ensure that financial
results are fairly stated and conform
with generally accepted accounting
principles for federal agencies. The
Office of Surface Mining has received
five consecutive unqualified, or

“clean,” audit opinions from the
Inspector General. The 1995 opinion
is found on page 47 of this report.

TABLE 2
COLLECTION MANAGEMENT
Category ~ Amount Collected  Balance Owed
Civil Penalties $ 370,790 $32,833,983
AML Fees 253,021,104 20,862,905
AML Audit Fees 2,395,679 25,133,187
Other Debt 528,444 257,464
Totals $256,316,017 $79,087,539
Debt Not Delinquent 10,010,850
Total Delinquent $69,076,689
L

Human Resources Management
The year ended with 84 fewer full-
time permanent employees than
when it began (down from 926 to 842
employees). Headquarters decreased
by 25; the coordinating centers by 34;
and the field offices by a total of 25.
Reduction in Force notices handed
out in 1995 will further reduce the
permanent employees by 186. In
addition, 41 employees were down-
graded and 47 were reassigned to
new jobs.

Monitoring Potential Conflicts of
Interests

Sections 201(f) and 517(g) of SMCRA
prohibit any federal or state employ-
ee “performing any function or duty
under this Act” from having “direct
or indirect financial interests in
underground or surface coal mining
operations.” The Office of Surface
Mining monitors to prevent financial
conflicts. In 1995, 955 Office of
Surface Mining and 2,316 state
employees filed financial disclosure
statements. Four violations were
identified and resolved.

Labor-Management Partnership
In June 1995, the president of Local




2,148 of the National Federation of
Federal Employees (Albuquerque,
New Mexico) and the Office of
Surface Mining established a Labor-
Management Partnership. This was
the second partnership agreement
that the Office of Surface Mining has
entered into. The first was in 1994
with Local 1993 at Headquarters.
These partnerships grew out of
Executive Order 12,871, Labor-
Management Partnerships, signed by
President Clinton on October 1, 1993.

Government Performance and
Results Act

The Government Performance and
Results Act (Public Law 103-62),
enacted to improve the efficiency and
effectiveness of federal programs,
requires the establishment of a
system to set program performance

goals and measure performance. The
Office of Surface Mining integrated
these requirements into its strategic
planning process and began to
develop goals and measures in 1995.

Business lines were developed. These
are an integral part of annual perfor-
mance plans and in 1996 (on a test
basis) will include measures to
demonstrate the success of Office of
Surface Mining programs. When
completed in 1997, this approach will
allow agency managers, Congress,
and our customers to link budgetary
resources with the accomplishment of
specific goals for the year. This
information will be included along
with financial and programmatic
statistics in the Office of Surface
Mining annual report each year.

The primary business lines (those

This topographic map shows a Colorado stream channel that was designed using the Technical
Information Processing System (TIPS). The stream was originally diverted to facilitate mining. The
TIPS design balanced cut and fill and provided a stable channel that will minimize erosion.

directly linked to mission goals)
include the following:

1. Environmental restoration: All

functions that contribute to reclaim-

ing lands affected by past coal mining

practices. Program activities are:

M State Funding,

B State Performance Evaluation,

M Emergencies,

M Federal /Indian Lands, and

M Program Development and Mainte-
nance.

2. Environmental protection: Func-
tions that directly contribute to
ensuring that the environment is
protected during surface coal mining
operations, including ensuring that
lands mined for coal are adequately
reclaimed after mining is completed.
Program activities are:

- M State Funding,

M State Performance Evaluation,

M Federal Programs,

M Federal Lands,

M Indian Lands,

M Program Development and Main-
tenance, and

W Applicant Violator System.

3. Technology development and
transfer: Functions that enhance the
technical skills states and Indian
tribes need to operate regulatory and
reclamation programs that meet the
requirements of SMCRA. Program
activities are:

B Training,

M Technical Assistance, and

M Technology Transfer.

4. Financial management: The
functions of collecting, managing,
and disbursing funds, including
budget allocations, grants, and
Abandoned Mine Land Fund collec-
tions. Office of Surface Mining
program activities associated with
this business line are:

M Revenue Management,

M Fee Compliance, and

M Financial Management.






Regulatory @forcement

A review of the shared federal/state/Indian environmental protection program for active
surface and underground coal mining and reclamation operations throughout the nation.

nder the Surface Mining Control

and Reclamation Act, the Office

of Surface Mining is responsible
for publishing the rules and regula-
tions necessary to carry out the Act.
The permanent regulatory program
and related rules provide the funda-
mental mechanism for ensuring that
SMCRA'’s goals are achieved. A major
objective is to establish a stable
regulatory program by improving the
regulation development process and
obtaining a broad spectrum of
viewpoints on rulemaking activities.

Rulemaking and State Program

‘ =~ 7] Amendments
The 1995
rulemaking
process included
discussions with
representatives of
the coal industry,
environmental
groups, and state
regulatory author-
ities to obtain
their input and
suggestions.
During the year,
the Office of Surface Mining pub-
lished one proposed permanent
program rule in the Federal Register:
Notification and Permit Processing,.
In addition, seven final permanent
program rules were published during
1995. Table 3 describes final regula-
Trees are more commonly tions published
planted during reclamation in the Federal

than they were in past years. Register during
Here they are establishedona 1995. Each
reclaimed Alabama mine. .

Fina! Rulemaking Actions
1978-1995

regulation
includes a Federal Register citation that
gives the volume and page number,
effective date, Code of Federal
Regulations (CFR) number, and date
of publication.

Subject to Office of Surface Mining
approval, states have the right to
amend their programs at any time for
appropriate reasons. In addition,
whenever SMCRA or its implement-

ing regulations are revised, the Office
of Surface Mining is required to
notify the states of the changes
needed to make sure that state
programs continue to meet federal
requirements. As a result, the states
have submitted a large number of
complex amendments. The Office of
Surface Mining has taken
several steps to process
states’ submissions more
efficiently. For example,
the amendment review
process within the Office
of Surface Mining has
been decentralized, and
format and content
guidelines for state
program amendment
submissions have been
issued to the states. Also,
steps have been taken to
make sure that states’
schedules for rulemaking
in response to CFR Part
732 notification can be accomplished

A effective

relationsh ip

between the

office of Surface

Mining and the

ﬁmdamental.”

TABLE 3

in a reasonably timely manner. In
1995, the Office of Surface Mining
published 88 proposed and 71 final
state program amendments in the
Federal Register.

State Programs

Since May 3, 1978, all .
surface coal mines have
been required to have
permits and to comply with
either Office of Surface
Mining regulations or
approved state program
provisions (in states that
have primacy). Currently,
there are 24 primacy states
that administer and enforce
programs for regulating
surface coal mining and
reclamation under SMCRA.
An effective relationship
between the Office of
Surface Mining and the
states is fundamental to the success-

FINAL RULES PUBLISHED DURING 1995

Coal Formation Fire Control
59 FR 52374 11/16/94

Permanent and Temporary impoundments
59 FR 53022 11/21/94

59 FR 54306 11/28/94

future permits.

Abandoned Sites

59 FR 60876 12/28/94

3/24/95

60 FR 9974

mine {and grants.

60 FR 16722 5/1/95

Arizona Federal Program
60 FR 18710 5/12/95

30 CFR Part 880

30 CFR Parts 701, 780, 874, 816, and 817

30 CFR Parts 840 and 842

30 CFR Part 903

Published 10/17/94

This rule implements a change to mine fire control activities under SMCRA and the Appalachian Regional
Developmaent Act in accordance with the Energy Policy Act of 1992,

Published 10/20/94

This rule clarifies the design precipitation event requirements for impoundments that rely primarily on storage to
control storm water runoff. Also, in response to a recent court decision, the rule clarifies that stability and margin of
safety requirements for impoundments to meet the criteria established in Technical Release No. 60 and Practice
Standard 378 prepared by the U.S. Department of Agricuiture, Soil Conservation Service.

Standards and Procedures for Ownership and Control Determinations
30 CFR Parts 701, 773, 778, 840, and 843

Published 10/28/94

This rule establishes procedures, standards, and types of proof required to challenge ownarship or control links and
to disapprove violations; amends the regulations atfecting permit blocking abatement of notices of violation,
improvidently issued permits, and permit application information; and reduces the chances of violators receiving

Published 11/28/94

This rule changes the minimum inspection frequency for surface coal mining and reclamation operations that have
been abandoned without completion of reclamation or abatement of violations.

Abandoned Mine Reclamation Grant Procedures
30 CFR Parts 870, 886, 887, and 888

Publsihed 3/31/95

This rule reduces the burden on industry, states, and the federal government to request and process abandoned

Underground Mining Performance Standards (Subsidence)
30 CFR Parts 701, 784, 817, and 843

Published 3/31/95

This rule amends the regulations applicable to underground coal mining and control of subsidence-caused damage
through the adoption of permitting requirements, performance standards, and implementation procedures.

Published 4/12/94

This rule creates a federal program to regulate coal exploration and surface coal mining and reclamation operations
on non-federal and non-Indian lands in the state of Arizona.
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TABLE 4

1995 SIGNIFICANT COURT and IBLA DECISIONS

TAKINGS

M & J Coal Co. v. United States, No. 94-5081 (Fed. App.)

On February 15, 1995, the United States Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit found favorably for the
Government in this takings claim. In April 1992, plaintiffs filed a complaint asserting that the Office of Surface
Mining’s enforcement action requiring them to leave additional coal in place to protect surface structures and
single private dwellings from subsidence effected a taking of their property. They sought $2,365,881 plus
interest. The court held that the right to remove the additional coal was not a part of the bundle of property
rights plaintiffs acquired along with their mineral interest, because removing so much coal as to cause
dangerous subsidence constituted a "nuisance-like activity. On October 2, 1995, the Supreme Court denied
plaintiff's petition for a writ of certiorari.

STATE PROGRAM AUTHORITY

Pennsylvania Coal Ass'n v. Babbitt, No. 94-7538 (3rd Cir.)

On August 16, 1995, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Third Circuit ruled favorably for the Government in its
reversal of a decision by the U.S. District Court for the Middle District of Pennsylvania. The district court had
reversed the Office of Surface Mining's approval of proposed revisions in the Pennsylvania state program that
applied a stricter standard of liability for individual civil penalties than the standard in section 518(f) of SMCRA.
The Third Circuit's opinion confirms that state regulatory programs may be more protective of the environment,
even if more burdensome to the coal industry, than the nationwide minimum protections in SMCRA. The Third
Circuit also upheld the Office of Surface Mining's approval of Pennsylvania program amendments that
eliminated the option for coal operators to delay appeal of a violation notice until a civil penalty had been
assessed.

RULE CHALLENGES

On August 31, 1995, Federal Judge Robinson upheld three sets of Office of Surface Mining rules:

National Wildlife Federation v. Babbitt, Nos. 88-3117, 88-3464, 88-3470 AER (D.D.C. Aug. 31, 1995)
Judge Robinson upheld the ownership and control regulations against challenges brought by environmentalist
groups and industry representatives. The court found that the Secretary's definition of "owned or controlled" at
30 C.F.R. Section 773.5 had a rational basis in light of the structure and language of SMCRA as a whole and
was consistent with the Act, its purposes, and the legislative history.

National Wildlife Federation v. Babbitt, Nos, 89-1751, 89-1811 (D.D.C. Aug. 31, 1995)

Judge Robinson upheld the Office of Surface Mining's improvidently issued permit and permit rescission
regulations as being consistent with principles of primacy under SMCRA. The court observed that the permit
rescission regulations were not impermissibly retroactive in their effect. In addition, the Court noted with
approval that the Office of Surface Mining had adopted amended regulations in 1994 which provided for
written notice and an opportunity for permittees to seek administrative review prior to rescission. The court
rejected environmentalists' challenge to the regulations stating that the agency had provided a rational basis
for the regulations.

National Wildlife Federation v. Babblitt, Nos. 89-1130, 89-1167 (D.D.C. Aug. 31, 1995)

Judge Robinson upheld the Office of Surface Mining's permit information regulations. Those rules require
disclosure of an applicant's ownership and control relationships and information about enforcement actions
taken against surface coal mining operations linked by ownership or control to the applicant. The Court found
that "[cJonsideration of SMCRA as a whole provides ample support for the Secretary's authority to issue" the
regulations.

ADMINISTRATIVE DECISIONS: INTERIOR BOARD OF LAND APPEALS

Ownership and Control

James Spur, Inc., et v. OSM, IBLA No. 93-633

On July 26, 1995, the IBLA issued a major decision establishing the IBLA's parameters for analysis of an
ownership and control link under 30 CFR Section 773.5(b)(6) and for purposes of the Applicant Violator
System. While ultimately rejecting the Office of Surface Mining's contention that mineral owner James Spur,
inc., controlled contract miner B & J Excavating Company, the Board agreed with the Office of Surface Mining
that the actual exercise of control by a controller is unnecessary to establish control. The Board indicated that
a finding of indirect authority to control may be made by inference from facts about the relationship between
the parties and the events which occurred. Nonetheless, the IBLA decision makes it easier for an applicant to
rebut an ownership and control finding.

ful implementation of SMCRA. This
shared federal-state commitment to
carry out the requirements of SMCRA
is based on common goals and
principles that form the basis for the
relationship.

Oversight of State Programs
SMCRA Section 517(a) requires the
Office of Surface Mining to make
inspections as necessary to evaluate
the administration of approved state
programs. To meet this requirement,
the Office of Surface Mining reviews
permits, conducts oversight inspec-
tions of mine sites, and undertakes
oversight review on topics of concern
in the 24 states with approved
primacy programs. Table 5 summa-
rizes the Office of Surface Mining’s
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oversight inspection and enforcement
activities during 1995.

Building on a draft plan developed in
1994, the Office of Surface Mining
and the states completed a new
oversight strategy for evaluating the
states’ success in meeting SMCRA's
environmental protection goals and
achieving adequate reclamation. The
new oversight plan was implemented
January 1, 1996. Under this plan, the
Office of Surface Mining, in coopera-
tion with each primacy state, will
develop a state-specific evaluation
plan. The plan will include joint
development of success measures and
measurement tools appropriate to
each state, based on the unique
conditions of each state program.

The process is customer driven, i.e.,
provide a means for obtaining
customer feedback on targets and
performance measures. Fundamental

Before remining by the Red River Coal Company,
this Virginia site was characterized by barren
outslopes, dangerous highwalls, acid mine drain-
age, and stream sedimentation. After mining, the
site was transformed from hazardous and envi-
ronmentally destroyed to its present outstanding
condition.




Louis Hinch, reclamation inspector, Virginia
Department of Mines, Minerals, and Energy.
After college, Louis began his career in the
engineering department of a surface and under-
ground coal mining company. With over 26 years
in the coal industry, including thirteen years as a
Virginia reclamation inspector, he has played an
active role in implementating SMCRA. He says
his experience has shown that “coal extraction in
the Virginia mountains can be accomplished on
an environmentally sound and economical ba-
sis.”

Louis was the mine inspector for the Red River
Coal Company remining operation shown below
left. This was the first remining site in Virginia,
and his mine inspections demonstrated that “this
operation proved mining and the elimination of
environmental problems can be accomplished at
the same time.” When talking about the con-
cept of remining he quickly points out the excel-
lent opportunity it provides for regulators and the
mining industry to work together to solve aban-
doned mine problems while economically mining
the coal resource.

measures and reports will be devel-
oped which can be easily
understood by our
customers.

The benefits of this plan
are many. It will allow
program managers to
allocate state and federal
resources to the places
which maximize
achievement according
to SMCRA. In this
regard, states, as an
integral part of program
management, will carry
out ongoing evaluation
of their own processes
and develop core data to gauge
trends in mining, reclamation, and
program activities. Office of Surface
Mining managers will have the ability
to direct resources to known prob-

E ach

primacy state

will develop a

state-specific
evaluation

}/hm.”

lems, and front-line employees will
use the oversight strategy to develop
specific success measures. By focus-
ing on results rather than process, the
Office of Surface Mining and the
states can concentrate their resources
on preventing problems in natural
resource-based (water, land, vegeta-
tion) and people-based (health and
safety, off-site protection, property
protection) areas.

The role of the Office of Surface
Mining will not duplicate the state
programs' implementation responsi-
bilities. Instead, the Office of Surface
Mining will evaluate the on-the-
ground success of the state programs
in achieving the purposes of SMCRA
and provide a framework to help the
states implement the principle of
continuous improvement.

Federal Programs

~ Section 504(a) of SMCRA requires the

Office of Surface Mining to regulate
surface coal mining and reclamation
activities on non-federal and non-
Indian lands in the state if:

M the state’s proposal for a perma-
nent program has not been
approved by the Secretary
of the Interior;

M the state does not
submit its own permanent
regulation program; or

M the state does not
implement, enforce, or
maintain its approved
state program.

Although the Office of
Surface Mining encourag-
es and supports state
primacy in the regulation of surface
coal mining and reclamation opera-
tions, certain states with coal reserves
have elected not to submit or main-
tain regulatory programs. Those

states are called federal program
states, and their surface coal mining
and reclamation operations are
regulated by the Office of Surface
Mining. Full federal programs are in
effect in twelve states: Arizona,
California, Georgia, Idaho, Massachu-
setts, Michigan, North Carolina,
Oregon, Rhode Island, South Dakota,
Tennessee, and Washington.

The Office of Surface Mining estab-
lished a federal program in Arizona,
30 CFR Part 903, on April 12, 1995.
The program was needed to regulate
planned surface coal mining activities
under applicable provisions of
SMCRA and under regulations found
in 30 CFR Part 736, in the absence of a
state program. Sections within Part
903 cross-reference the counterpart
permanent program rules. The
Arizona federal program also in-
cludes a process for coordinating the
review and issuance of surface
mining permits with other federal or
state permits applicable to the
proposed operation, according to
Section 504(h) of SMCRA.

Of the federal program states, only
Tennessee and Washington had
active coal mining in 1995. Table 6
includes the Office of Surface Min-
ing’s regulatory actions in those two
states during 1995.

Grants to States

Section 201 of
SMCRA autho-
rizes the Office
of Surface
Mining to help
state regulatory
authorities
develop or
revise surface
mining regulato-
Iy programs.
Although no
program devel-
opment grants

Permanent Program
Regulatory Grants 1978-1995
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TABLE 5
FEDERAL OVERSIGHT OF STATE PROGRAMS

1995 (July 1, 1994 - June 30, 1995)

Violations Cited in OSM Enforcement
Number of OSM Inspections Notice of Violation Failure-To-Abate Imminent Harm
Complete Total Actions  Violations  Actions Cessation Orders Actions Cessation Orders

were awarded in 1995,

the Office of Surface
Alabama 106 239 0 0 0 0 M“ng d.ld worklw1th
Aaska 3 3 0 0 0 Indian tribes to plan for
Arkansas 10 15 1 1 1 1996 program develop-
... %y 1 - ment objectives.
llinois 0 114 0 0 0
Indiana 0. ‘ ‘ 0 Section 705 of SMCRA
) low§ ‘ o 10 17 0 0 0 hori the Offi :
|okansad e : g S aut orizes the Office o
Kentucky 415 6 2 2 0 Surface Mining to
Lovisiana 1 0 0 0 0 provide grants to states
and o0 with approved regulatory
[ Gl programs in amounts not
Montana 0 0 dine 50 ¢
New Mexico 0 0 exceeding 50 percent o
North Dakota 0 0 annual state program
Ohis s costs. In addition, when a
Oklahoma 0 0 t state elects to administer
Pennsytvania 267 458 4 9 0 an approved program on
Texas 10 12 0 0
1 17 0 1 federal land through a
| 141 s b . cooperative agreement
West Virginia 107 654 23 0 0 with the Office of Surface
Wyoming 15 % 0 0 0 Mining, the state be-
comes eligible for finan-
Total 13 372 140 150 56 58 2 2 cial assistance of up to
100 percent of the
1. Of the 140 Notice of Violations issued by the Office of Surface Mining, 124 were for failure to pay fees or file the OSM-1 form, 4 were for amount the federal
ownership and control violations, and 12 were based on failure to meet performance standards. government would have
TABLE 6

REGULATORY PROGRAM STATISTICS
1995 (July 1, 1994 - June 30, 1995)

Craw Hopi
Trib

Colorado  Trib. Georgi Hinots Indiana lowa

Reguiatory Program Staffing (FTE's 6/30/95) a3 4 6.9 26 NA NA NA 62 63 47 4.1 482 NA 4.2 13 15.6
Abandoned Mine Land Program Staffing (FTE's 6/30/95) 191 4 65 13 6.5 NA 25 34 27 5.2 12.9 52 NA 1.3 6 12.4

New Permits Issued 21 o 0 17 5 o

. New Acreans Paimited 5 west w6 L s 0
Totai Acreage Permitted 95,054 4,418 1,800 158,800 5204 12 62760 119,880 487,302 8,100 10,705 1,626,400 45,100 46,400
Inspectable Units (6/30/95) 305 7 28 80 1 3 2 106 482 32 21 3,435 57 2 79 67
Complete Inspections 17 217 4 14,106 232 8 483 270

artlal nbpastions . isiee 15 o5 e
Notices of Violations (Actions) 269 4 2 ap o 0 8 30 18 64 7 1,348 15 2 29 107
Notices of Violations (Violations) 345 4 2 as o 0 7 30 130 64 7 2,613 20 2 29 107
Failure-to-Abate Cessation Orders (Actions) 80 0 o 0 o 0 ° o 214 ] 0 7 10

«,} _Fallurerto Abate Ceséaﬁén Orders (Violat 0 o ° o 0 o . 214 o 0 7 110
Imminent Harm Cessation Orders (Actions) ] o o ° 0 o o o 0 o o 21 ° o o 4
Imminent Harm Cessation Orders (Violations) L] o o ] o o o o o o o 21 o o o o
Bond Forfeitures 7 o 0 [ [ o 0 o 1 4 o 83 o o 1 o
v»pl/‘Phq‘se Hi Bond Aelo; - 15,839 o e 356 288

*Federal Lands Program
“*Indian Lands Regulatory Program
NA - Information not available




Reforestation is the post-mining land use at the
Centralia Mine site in Washington state. Douglas
fir and red alder are being planted to reestablish
the mixed stands that were growing here prior to
mining. Washington is a federal program state,
and all permitting and enforcement is performed
by the Office of Surface Mining.

Glenn Waugh, a senior reclamation specialist
with the Office of Surface Mining's Olympia Area
Office, is responsible for SMCRA enforcementin
the state of Washington.

Growing up in southern Ohio, Glen lived with the
adverse environmental impacts wroughtby poor
surface coal mining and reclamation practices.
After college he joined the Ohio Division of
Reclamation, working to prevent these impacts
before SMCRA was passed by Congress. He
joined the Office of Surface Mining in 1979.
Today heis one of the Office of Surface Mining's
most experienced inspectors, having worked in
many different jobs at headquarters and in all
regions of the country. In his current role as
principal regulator in a federal program state, he
is a front-line inspector doing everything from
permitting to on-the-ground inspection. When he
describes his career implementing SMCRA, he
says, "The most rewarding thing for me is to see
quality reclamation, reclamation thatwasn't even
imagined when | was younger.”

TABLE 6 (continued)

spent to regulate coal mining on those
lands. Table 7 shows grant amounts
provided to states during 1995 to
administer and enforce regulatory
programs.

Regulation of Surface Mining on
Federal and Indian Lands

Section 523(a) of SMCRA requires the
Secretary of the Interior to establish
and implement a federal regulatory
program that applies to all surface
coal mining operations that take place
on federal land. The Office of Surface
Mining enacted the current federal
lands program on February 16, 1983.

The federal lands program is impor-
tant because the federal government
owns significant coal reserves,
primarily in the West. The develop-
ment of federal coal reserves is
governed by the Federal Coal Man-
agement Program of the Department
of the Interior’s Bureau of Land
Management. Of the 234 billion tons

REGULATORY PROGRAM STATISTICS

1995 (July 1, 1994 - June 30, 1995)

Navajo New  North

Montana Tribe*

297

Regulatory Program Staffing (FTE's 6/30/95)
Abandoned Mine Land Program Staffing (FTE's 6/30/95)
New Permits Issued

' NéWjA‘cre,égéPermltted o “

Total Acreage Permitted 1

Inspectable Units (6/30/95) 44

Complete Inspections 175

' Paniial inspections

Notices of Violations {(Actions)
Notices of Violations (Violations)
Faiture-to-Abate Cessation Orders (Actions)

Eailure-t-Abate Cossation Orders (Violafions).

Imminent Harm Cessation Orders (Actions)
Imminent Harm Cessation Orders (Violations)
Bond Forfeitures

Aar 'gé'a ol F’hws m I/:‘;_’qnd Ralqaéé

owner of 56,623 acres and the Hopi Tribe owns 6,137 surface acres of 1he total permitted area. In this 1able ail data reported for this parmit area is listed under the Hopi Tribe.

Mexico Dakota Ohio  Oklahoma Pennsylvania. Tennessee  Texas

) e

Note: The Black Mesa/Kayenta mining complex consists ot 62,760 permitted acres that are within the boundaries of the Navajo and Hopi Indian Reservations. The Hopi and Navajo are each 50% owners of the coal on this land. The Navajo Nation is the surface

West
Virginia Washington Virginia

West
Virginia*
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Tribe** Wyonnng

Utah
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TABLE 7
REGULATORY GRANT FUNDING

1995 OBLIGATIONS

Federal Funding*

Cumulative

1994 Through 1995*
Alabama $ 1,204,372 $1,197,778 $18,686,179
Alaska 175,785 196,428 4,396,821
173,151 ) 164,247 2,407,831
B agerel 45900588
2,340,818 2,362,417 35,733,694
1,708,648 1,757,834 19,832,154
156,978 156,468 1,744,876
g 126,708 16/ L
Kentucky 12,412,454 12,344,711 170,762,348
Louisiana 210,985 209,830 2,353,115
446,308 443 864 7,889,891
o - i Has458
[4] 43,191 475,702
428,956 406,255 5,430,766
870,673 840,038 10,312,003
e sairis UlBosa 1
516,459 513,631 7,950,063
2,508,662 2,494,927 46,622,553
848,494 843,848 11,053,799
10,558,478 1085/000 W Hsssites
o] 0 158,453
Tennessee [¢] [o] 5,340,085
th)/()as 1,195,607 1,189,061 11,977,713
Joan | . 13054980 o8 is 638,008
Virginia 3,172,726 3,155,354 43,798,824
Washington 0 [0} 4,893
West Vriginia 7,469,870 7,428,970 63,097,328
‘Wydming i asiizoe ) iBtedss ‘po7eBET
Crow Tribe S0 o 0 T 732,759
Hopi Tribe o] o} 885,450
Navajo Tribe 0 0 2,140,461
Total $51,531,766 $51,348,988 $670,925,200
Budget Amount  $51,562,000 $51,661,000 $671,295,000

However, cumuiative figures are net of all prior-y

*Includes obligations for AVS, TIPS, Kentucky Settlemant, and other Title V cooperative
agreemants. Federal funding figures do not include downward adjustments of prior-year awards.

downward adjt

Linda Hixson is an attorney and citizen activist
from Chattanooga, Tennessee. Through her
efforts and leadership more than $250,000 has
been raised for restoration of the North
Chickamauga Creek, a stream severely polluted
from the effects of acid mine drainage. She
initially became involved in stream improvement
projects when she formed the Friends of North
Chickamauga Creek Greenway Inc. The group
completed its first on-the-ground project in 1995,
which raised the pH from 3.1 to 7.2. Local
leadership, as exemplified by Linda Hixson, is the
key to successfully cleaning up acid mine drain-
age in Appalachia.
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of identified coal
reserves in the
western U.S., 60
percent is federally
owned.

Through cooperative
agreements, the
administration of
most surface coal
mining requirements
of the federal lands
program may be
delegated by the
Secretary of the
Interior to states with
approved regulatory
programs. By the end
of 1995, the Secretary
had entered into such
cooperative agree-
ments with Alabama,
Colorado, Illinois,
Montana, New

Mexico, North Dakota, Ohio, Oklaho-
ma, Utah, Virginia, West Virginia,
and Wyoming.

Under SMCRA, once the Secretary
and a state have signed a cooperative
agreement, the state regulatory
authority assumes permitting,
inspection, and enforcement responsi-
bilities for surface coal mining
activities on federal lands in that
state. The Office of Surface Mining
maintains an oversight function to
ensure that the regulatory authority
fully exercises its delegated responsi-
bility under the cooperative agree-
ment. In states without cooperative
agreements, the required permitting,
inspection, and enforcement activities
under SMCRA are carried out by the
Office of Surface Mining. During
1995, five new permits were issued
by the Office of Surface Mining on

This acid mine drainage site ocated in the Chickamauga watershed was an
Appalachian Clean Streams Initiative pilot project. In 1995 a passive treatment
facility was constructed to eliminate this source of poliution.




federal land in Kentucky.
For states with leased federal coal, the
Office of Surface Mining
prepares the Mining Plan
Decision Documents
required by the Mineral
Leasing Act, as amended,
and documentation for
other non-delegable
authorities for approval
by the Secretary. During
1995, 12 mining plan
actions were prepared
and approved for coal
mines on federal land.

Pursuant to Section 710 of
SMCRA, the Office of
Surface Mining regulates
coal mining and reclama-
tion on Indian lands. In
the Southwest, three mines on the
Navajo and Hopi reservations and a
portion of a coal haul road on the Ute
Mountain Ute Reservation are

Hugh L. Frederick, P.E., Tennessee Abandoned
Mine Land Program. Having experience with the
Soil Conservation Service, U.S. Forest Service,
and the Office of Surface Mining, he joined the
Tennessee program in 1986 with responsibility
for designing water treatment facilities. He is a
leader in the field, and has used the latest proven
technology and developed new methods for pas-
sive treatment of acid mine drainage. He says
“clean water is one of our most precious resourc-
es. We have aresponsibility to protect, clean up,
and conserve this necessary commodity.” Hugh
Frederick was responsible for the design and
construction at the site shown to the left.

"_Durz’ng

1995, the

Applicant/

Violator System
yrovided

o1 6,456 permit

ayyhmtwns.“

permitted under the permanent
Indian Lands Program, and one mine
is operating under an
interim permit. In addi-
tion, the Office of Surface
Mining, in cooperation
with the Bureau of Indian
Affairs and the Navajo
Nation, is overseeing the
final reclamation of three
mines on the Navajo
Reservation regulated
under the interim pro-
gram.

recommendations

On the Crow Ceded Area
in Montana, the Office of
Surface Mining and the
Montana Department of
State Lands administer
applicable surface mining
requirements under a Memorandum
of Understanding that includes both
permitting and inspection functions.

Section 2514 of the Energy Policy Act
of 1992 (Public Law 102-486) stipu-
lates that grants shall be made to the
Crow, Hopi, Navajo, and Northern
Cheyenne Tribes to assist them in
developing programs for regulating
surface coal mining and reclamation
operations on Indian lands. The
development of these programs
includes: creating tribal mining
regulations and policies; working
with the Office of Surface Mining in
the inspection and enforcement of
mining activities on Indian lands
(including permitting, mine plan
review, and bond release); and
education in the area of mining and
mineral resources. During 1995 the
Office of Surface Mining began
working with the four tribes to
develop legislation for them to
assume primacy. Development grant
funding is contained in the Bureau of
Indian Affairs 1996 budget. Table 6
includes statistics on regulatory
activity on Indian lands during 1995.

Applicant/Violator System

Section 510(c) of SMCRA and corre-
sponding regulations (30 CFR 773)
prohibit the issuance of permits to
applicants with previous uncorrected
violations and to applicants related to
violators through ownership and
control. The Applicant/Violator
System (AVS), a computer data base,
was developed to assist the Office of
Surface Mining and the state regula-
tory authorities ensure compliance
with those requirements. The Appli-
cant/Violator System identifies
associations between permit appli-
cants or their affiliates and uncorrect-
ed violations of SMCRA. The Office
of Surface Mining and the states use
the information to help determine
whether a permit should be issued.
During 1995, the Applicant/Violator
System provided recommendations
on 6,456 permit applications. The
overall system reliability rate was
over 78 percent on those applications.
(This rate represents the percent of
system recommendations which the
Applicant/ Violator System office
agrees with and does not overturn
during its quality check and review.)
The 11 percent drop from 1994 was
largely due to moving the system
from the U.S. Geological Survey
mainframe computer to the Office of
Surface Mining’s own mini-computer.
The Office of Surface Mining esti-
mates the 1995 cost savings resulting
from the system move to be $950,000.
In 1995, as a result of “Deny” recom-
mendations, or the potential for such
a recommendation, the Office of
Surface Mining’s Division of Debt
Management collected $677,200 in
Abandoned Mine Reclamation fees
and federal civil penalties.

Pennsylvania Anthracite Program
Section 529 of SMCRA provides an
exemption from federal performance
standards for anthracite coal mining
operations, provided the state law
governing these operations was in




effect on August 3, 1977. Pennsylva-
nia is the only state with an estab-
lished regulatory program qualifying
for the exemption, and thus regulates
anthracite mining independent of
SMCRA program standards.

The Pennsylvania anthracite coal
region is located in the northeast
quarter of the state and covers
approximately 3,300
square miles. More than
20 different coal beds vary
in thickness from a few
inches to 50 or 60 feet.

The anthracite region is
characterized by steeply
pitching seams, some with
dips steeper than 60
degrees. Such strata
require specialized mining
techniques and present
unique challenges to
ensure that highwalls are
eliminated and the area is
restored to productive
post-mining land use. The
long history of mining in
the anthracite region has produced a
legacy of abandoned mine land
problems. However, because most
active mining operations affect
previously disturbed land, a large
percentage of abandoned mine land
is eventually restored to productive
land use.

In 19943 the anthracite mining indus-
try increased production to around
8.0 million net tons per year, approx-
imately 12 percent of Pennsylvania’s
annual coal production. More than
two-thirds of anthracite coal produc-
tion is from the reprocessing of
anthracite culm banks which fuels
eight cogeneration plants. Anthracite
operators mined approximately 5.4
million tons from banks, 2.2 million
from surface mines, and 0.4 million
tons from underground mines.

Pennsylvania’s Department of

Citizens Jave

a high ratiny
for quick
and efficient
response
to mining

comylaints."

3. Calendar year 1994,
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Environmental Protection continues
to successfully carry out the provi-
sions of the anthracite regulatory
program. Citizens gave the District
Mining Office in Pottsville a high
rating for quick and efficient response
to mining complaints. State mine
inspectors achieve over 95% of their
required complete inspections. On
complete inspections, over 80% of
the mines were in compli-
ance with performance
standards.

Technical Assistance

The Office of Surface
Mining provides technical
assistance to the states,
tribes, and the industry to
improve the effectiveness
of the regulatory process.
Although it deals mainly
with regulatory functions,
technical assistance also
supports the Abandoned
Mine Land program.
Technology transfer
increased in 1995 due to the shared
commitment with the states. This has
provided an atmosphere for resolving
problems through technical assis-
tance, rather than oversight.

On February 27, 1995, the Office of
Surface Mining signed a contract for
technical assistance with Indonesia’s
Bureau of Environment and Technol-
ogy of the Ministry of Mines and
Energy. Over the next three years,
technical assistance from the Office of
Surface Mining will help the Ministry
regulate Indonesia's rapidly expand-
ing surface coal mining industry. The
World Bank will fund the $3.2 million
agreement, and all Office of Surface
Mining work will be 100 percent
reimbursable.

Technical Information Processing
System (TIPS)
The Technical Information Processing

i

Mark Hiles is a senior environmental specialist
with the Lee Ranch Coal Company. Having
grown upin southern New Mexico and worked on
both coal and uranium mining reclamation in the
southwest, he is very knowledgeable about the
sensitivity of an arid environment.

Soon after he started work atthe Lee Ranch Mine
regulators began questioning the success of the
revegetation. Large areas had only a small
number of perennial plants established. When
the New Mexico mine inspectors offered to help
solve the problem, a sprit of cooperation was
initiated. Realizing that annual weeds were a
major part of the problem, Mark and the inspec-
tors agreed on a plan to burn the weeds to control
annual vegetation. After only one growing sea-
son it was evident that controlling annual weeds
through burning was a success, allowing the
desired perennials to flourish. Mark sums up this
experience best when he says, "Doing reclama-
tionwork is personally rewarding, especially when
the company and regulators are so supportive of
continued improvement."

System is a computer system de-
signed by the Office of Surface
Mining in partnership with primacy
states. TIPS is maintained by the
Office of Surface Mining for use by
state regulatory authorities, including
the Office of Surface Mining, to carry
out the technical regulatory and
abandoned mine land responsibilities
of SMCRA. The system consists of a
centrally-located computer net-
worked through the Office of Surface
Mining wide-area network, with
engineering/scientific work stations
in state, tribe, and selected federal
offices. TIPS aids the technical
decision making associated with
conducting reviews of permits,
performing cumulative hydrologic
impact assessments, quantifying
potential effects of coal mining,
measuring revegetation success,
assisting in the design of abandoned
mine lands projects, and preparing
environmental assessments and
environmental impact statements. In




Larry Byrd, mine inspector for the New Mexico
Energy, Minerals, and Natural Resources De-
partment. With over 20 years experience in
environmental planning, his goalinimplementing
SMCRA is to strive for a balance between coal
production and protecting the environment.
Achieving this goal includes working closely with
industry representatives to ensure that coal pro-
duction continues while protecting the environ-
ment and completing the highest quality recla-
mation. As the mineinspector, Larry Byrd worked
closely withthe Lee Ranch Mining Company, and
coupled with his personal commitment to suc-
cess, encouraged teamwork and innovative rec-
lamation methods.

1995 more than 300 state, Office of
Surface Mining, and private-sector
scientists attended 25 training courses
in how to use the system.

One successful application using TIPS
is electronic permitting. For example,
Wyoming permit applications can be
electronically submitted by mine
operators. In an evaluation of a test
case, this reduced permit review time
by one third.

Training

During 1995, nationwide training
continued for federal, state, tribal,
and private surface coal mining
regulatory and reclamation person-
nel. The technical training program is
a cooperative effort of state, tribal,
and Office of Surface Mining offices.
All program offerings are jointly
developed and taught by teams of
state and Office of Surface Mining
staff. In 1995, a total of 139 instruc-
tors contributed to the program. 55
percent of instructors were from the
Office of Surface Mining coordinating

The Lee Ranch Coal Company is located in the semi-arid Southwest, where it is difficult to establish
self-sustaining rangeland and wildlife habitat. Annual weeds make it difficult to establish a successful
stand of native perennial vegetationin reclaimed areas. At Lee Ranch, the use of fire to control weeds
has resulted in the reestablishment of native vegetation while providing an outstanding method for

improving rangeland in this arid environment.




centers and field offices, 38 percent
from 15 states, six percent from field
solicitors offices, and one percent
from other sources.

1,091 participants attended the 62
sessions offered for 24 courses. State
and tribal students accounted for 73
percent of program attendance, Office
of Surface Mining 22 percent, and
private totaled 5 percent. The 1995
program presented a 25 percent
increase in offerings and services over
1994. These increases were in direct
response to the needs expressed by
state and tribal customers.

The 24 courses offered in 1995
included: Acid-Forming Materials:
Fundamentals; Acid-Forming Materi-
als: Planning & Prevention; Adminis-
tration of Reclamation Projects;
Alternative Enforcement; Basic
Inspection Workbook; Blasting;
Bonding Workshop: Administrative
and Legal; Bonding: Cost-Estimating;
Enforcement Procedures; Engineering
Principles for Program Personnel;
Expert Witness; Evidence Preparation
and Testimony; Historical and
Archeological Resources; Instructor
Training; NEPA Procedures; Permit-
ting Hydrology; Principles of Inspec-
tion; Soil Erosion and Sediment
Control; Soils and Revegetation; Spoil
Handling and Disposal Practices;
Surface and Ground Water Hydrolo-
gy; Technical Writing; Underground
Mining; and Wetlands Awareness.
Five of these courses were new and
seven were revised. In addition,
Indonesian students attended three
courses in the U.S. and two courses
conducted in Indonesia.

Due to Office of Surface Mining
staffing and budget cuts, the 1996
training schedule will be more
limited than in past years. Major
efforts will be directed to revising
and re-engineering the existing
program rather than conducting
courses.

S
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Small Operator Assistance Program
(SOAP)

2 Section 401
(b)(1) of SMCRA
authorizes that
up to 10 percent
of the fees
collected for the
Abandoned
Mine Reclama-
tion Fund can be
used to help
qualified small
mine operators
obtain technical
data needed for
permit applications. Through 1991,
operators who produced fewer than
100,000 tons of coal per year were
eligible for assistance. Beginning with
Fiscal Year 1992, the Abandoned
Mine Reclamation Act of 1990
increased from 100,000 to 300,000
tons the production limit that defined
whether small operators qualify for
assistance.

]

rant Obligations
95

1978-19

TABLE 8
SMALL-MINE OPERATOR ASSISTANCE
1995 GRANT AWARDS*

Grant Amount
1995 1994

Kentucky $ 1,009,805 $ 310,000
Maryland 103,715 50,000
Ohio 272,000 314,500
Okahoma - | 4D 0
Pennsylvania 1,800,000 1,200,000
Virginia 10,000 [
Woest Virginia 407,223 153,785
Total $3,606,743 $2,028,285
*These figures do not include downward adjustments of prior-year awards.

The Energy Policy Act of 1992 (Public
Law 102-486) added a number of
enhancements to the technical
permitting services provided under
SOAP. These include engineering
analyses and designs necessary for
the hydrologic impact “determina-
tion,” cross-section maps and plans,
geologic drilling, archaeological and
historical information and plans,
information and plans required for
the protection of fish and wildlife
habitat and other environmental
values, and pre-blast surveys.

Reguliations for SOAP place responsi-
bility with the states that have




approved permanent programs. In
states with federal programs, the
Office of Surface Mining operates
SOAP. In 1995, 156 small mine
operators received assistance, an
increase from 129 operators in 1994.
Table 8 provides a breakdown of
SOAP grant awards by state during
1995.

Experimental Practices
T 1 Section 711 of
SMCRA allows
alternative, or
experimental,
mining and
reclamation
practices that do
not comply with
Sections 515 and
516 performance
standards as a
way of encour-
aging advances
in mining
technology or to
allow innova-
tive industrial,
commercial,
residential, or
public post-
mining land
uses. However,
the experimen-
tal practices
must meet all
other standards
established by
SMCRA and
must maintain
In 1995 the Office of
Surface Mining is-
sued a directive en-
couraging the con-
struction of wetlands
as a postmining land
use. Wetlands im-
prove water quality
and recreational op-
portunities, encour-
age greater biologi-
cal diversity and wild-
life habitat, and re-

duce storm and flood
damage.

Experimental Practices
Started 1978-1995

protection of the environment and the
public. Approval and monitoring of a
permit containing an experimental
practice requires a close working
relationship between the mine
operator, the state, and the Office of
Surface Mining.

In 1995 there were eight ongoing
projects addressing a variety of
reclamation possibilities, including
the creation of wetlands through
direct seeding of coal slurry ponds,
alternative sediment control methods,
and post-mining land use for housing
development. No new experimental
practices were started in 1995.

Reclamation Awards
To recognize the people responsible
for the nation’s outstanding achieve-
ments in carrying out environmental-
ly sound mining and reclamation
under Title V, the Office of Surface
Mining presents awards to operators
who have developed
innovative reclamation
techniques or who have
completed mining and
reclamation operations
that resulted in outstand-
ing on-the-ground perfor-
mance. Awards for 1994
were presented October 9,
1995, at the National
Mining Association’s
annual meeting:

Director’s Award

M The Director’s award
was presented to the
McKay Coal Company
for exemplary reclamation that
eliminated acid mine drainage
from previous mining at its mine
near Ohl, Pennsylvania.

National Awards

B Cumberland River Coal Company,
for exemplary reclamation of a fish
and wildlife habitat at its Ridgeline
Mine, near Jackson, Kentucky.

ngulatimts
for SOAP

lace

resyonsilrility

with the

states.”

B Lee Ranch Coal Company, for
successful use of new methods for
controlling weeds when reestab-
lishing native vegetation in arid
conditions. This company also
received the “Best-of-the-Best”
award for achieving the years best
overall reclamation at its mine near
Milan, New Mexico.

M Branham & Baker Coal Company,
near Pikeville, Kentucky, for
exemplary reclamation and long-
term management of the donated
reclaimed land.

B B & N Coal Company, Ullman Pit,
near Lower Salem, Ohio, for
exemplary remining and no-cost
abandoned mine land reclamation.

B Peabody Coal Company, Broken
Aro Mine, near Coshocton, Ohio,
for exemplary reclamation of a
previously mined slurry disposal
area.

B Jamieson Construction
Company, Atkinstown,
Kentucky, for outstand-
ing reclamation achieved
by a small coal operator
adjacent to an endan-
gered species habitat.

M Falkirk Mining Compa-
ny, Underwood, North
Dakota, for its sensitive
and successful handling
of Native American
skeletal remains uncov-
ered during mining.

M Bridger Coal Company, Jim
Bridger Mine, Rock Springs,
Wyoming, for its exemplary
techniques to mitigate conflicting
nesting /highwall use by raptors.

M Rawl Sales & Processing Company,
for the construction of a bridge
used by the company and local
residents at Sprigg, West Virginia.

s
25






Abandoned mine landreclamation

An update on the reclamation of land and water resources affected by mining that took
place before the Surface Mining Law was passed in 1977.

doned Mine Land Reclamation

Program — provides for the
restoration of lands mined and
abandoned or left inadequately
restored before August 3, 1977,
Situations that pose a danger to
public health, safety and general
welfare are given priority.

I I litle IV of SMCRA — the Aban-

Fund Management

Production fees of
35 cents per ton
of surface mined
coal, 15 cents per
ton of coal mined
underground,
and 10 cents per
ton of lignite are
collected from
coal producers at
all active coal
mining opera-
tions. The fees are
deposited in the
Abandoned Mine
Reclamation Fund, which is used to
pay the reclamation costs of aban-
doned mine land projects. The fund
consists of fees, contributions, late-
payment interest, penalties, adminis-
trative charges, and interest earned
on investment of the fund’s principal.
From January 30, 1978, when the first
fees were paid, through September
30, 1995, the fund has collected

| $4,083,084,264.

Abandoned Mine Land
Fund Collections
1978-1995

Expenditures from the fund are made
through the regular budgetary and.
appropriation process. SMCRA

Coal waste removed between 1872 and the 1930s was
deposited at a mine entrance located in Eckhart
Mines, Maryland. As coal refuse was dumped in the
valley a drainage tunnel designed to carry stream
flows through the site was failing. Any furtherblockage
would have created an unstable coal refuse damin this
residential neighborhood. Over 140 thousand cubic
yards of coal refuse was removed, and, following
excavation of the tunnel, stream channels were lined
with rip-rap. The site was regraded to stabilize the
steep slopes and then revegetated with grasses,
legumes, shrubs, and trees.

specifies that 50 percent of the
reclamation fees collected in each
state with an approved
reclamation program, or
within Indian lands where
the tribe has an approved
reclamation program, are
to be allocated to that state
or tribe. That 50 percent is
designated as the state or
tribal share of the fund.
The remaining 50 percent
(the federal share) is used
by the Office of Surface
Mining to complete high-
priority and emergency
projects under its Federal
Reclamation Program, to
fund the Rural Aban-
doned Mine Program
(RAMP) administered by the U.S.
Department of Agriculture, to fund
the Small Operator Assistance
Program (SOAP), to fund reclamation
directly through state reclamation
programs, and to pay audit and
administrative costs. In 1991, at the
direction of Congress, a formula to
distribute federal-share money to the
state reclamation programs was
established based on historic coal
production. Table 9 shows collections
and funding by states for 1995.

The Abandoned Mine Reclamation
Act of 1990 (Public Law 101-508)
extended fee collection authority
through September 30, 1995; the
Energy Policy Act of 1992 (Public
Law 102-468) further extended fee
collection authority until September
30, 2004.

In 1992, under authority of Public
Law 101-508, the Office of Surface
Mining began investing abandoned
mine land funds. By law, the Office of
Surface Mining is restricted to
investing in certain market-based
securities issued by the U.S. Treasury,
such as bills, notes, bonds, and one-
day certificates. Total investment
earnings for 1995 were $69.29 million.
The average interest earned during

investment

eanings for'

1995 were
$69.29

million.”

the year was 5.31 percent. At the end
of the year, the Office of Surface
Mining had more than
$1.29 billion invested in
Treasury securities. The
Energy Policy Act of 1992
(Public Law 102-486)
stipulated that all 1993
investment earnings
received and all future
investment earnings are to
be made available for
transfer from the Aban-
doned Mine Reclamation
Fund to the United Mine
Workers Association
Combined Benefits Fund,
beginning in 1996. On
September 30, 1995,
$132.45 million was
available for transfer.

Federal Reclamation Program
Under Sections
402 and 407 of
SMCRA, the
Secretary of the
Interior is autho-
rized to expend

| Abandoned Mine
Reclamation
Fund monies for
non-emergency
reclamation of
high-priority sites
that present an
extreme danger
to the public. A
non-emergency is defined in 30 CFR
870.5 as “a condition that could
reasonably be expected to cause
substantial harm to persons, proper-
ty, or the environment and to which
persons or improvements on real
property are currently exposed.”

Iinterior Department
Projects 1978-1895

Until 1980, when states and Indian
tribes began to receive approval of
their abandoned mine land programs,
all reclamation was administered by
the Office of Surface Mining. Howev-
er, as state and tribal programs were
approved and the states and tribes
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assumed responsibility for correcting
abandoned mine land problems, the
Office of Surface Mining has greatly
reduced its direct participation in this
portion of the program. During 1995,
work was accomplished on 14
projects: 4 in Georgia, 1 in Michigan,
3 in Tennessee, and 6 in Washington.

Emergency Program

Emergency
projects are those
involving
abandoned mine
lands that
present a danger
to public health,
safety, or general
welfare and
which require
immediate
action.

Office of Surface Mining
Emergency Projects

Emergency Under Section

40l(a)of SMCRA,
the Secretary of the Interior is autho-
rized to spend money from the
Abandoned Mine Reclamation Fund
for the emergency restoration,
reclamation, abatement, control, or
prevention of the effects of coal
mining practices if an emergency
exists.

Since the beginning of the program,
the Office of Surface Mining has
encouraged states to assume respon-
sibility for emergency projects. In
1983, Arkansas and Montana as-
sumed emergency project responsibil-
ity, followed by Illinois in 1984.
During 1988 and 1989, Kansas,
Virginia, and West Virginia took over
responsibility for their emergency
projects. Alabama assumed responsi-
bility in 1990, followed by Ohio in
1992, Alaska and North Dakota in
1993, and Indiana in 1994. In 1989,
the Office of Surface Mining estab-
lished an emergency policy that
provided federal share funds, in
addition to the formula-based alloca-
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TABLE 9
ABANDONED MINE LAND FEE COLLECTIONS AND FUNDING

1995

Total State Share Federal Share Emergency Total
State/Tribe Collected Distribution* Distribution* Distribution*  Distribution*
Alabama $ 5,942,676 $ 1,687,599 $1,419,862 $300,000 $ 3,407,461
Alaska 519,457 156,504 1,343,496 25,000 1,525,000
Arkansas 15,536 0 1,500,000 13,000 1,513,000
Colorado 5,627,036 1,337,711 691968 o 0 2,029,679
Ilinois 8,505,428 3,212,840 5,260,085 561,000 9,033,925
Indiana 9,220,160 2,929,195 1,712,519 310,000 4,951,714
lowa 0 13,915 1,486,085 0 1,500,000
Kansas 108,787 56.142 1,443,858 460,000 1,960,000
Kentucky 35,489,723 10,377,854 5,155,216 0 15,533,070
Louisiana 352,194 89,066 0 0 89,066
Maryland 749,548 219,879 1,280,121 0 1,500,000
Missouri 282,471 202,909 - 1,297,091 -0 1,600,000
Montana 12,812,020 3,450,887 0 125,000 3,575,887
New Mexico 5,254,894 1,228,829 271117 0 1,500,000
North Dakota 3,161,954 883,647 616,353 50,000 1,550,000
Ohio 6,531,968 2,324,565 3204500 - 1,700,000 7,249,065
Oklahoma 713,191 178,255 1,321,745 0 1,500,000
Pennsylvania 12,448,761 4,153,371 17,003,204 0 21,156,575
Tennessee 666,860 0 0 0 0
Texas 5,088,628 1,517,593 0 0 1,617,593
Utah 3,638,527 891,730 608,270 0 1,500,000
Virginia 7,134,886 2,367,783 1,582,298 350,000 4,300,081
Washington 1,517,541 0 0 0 0
West Virginia 34,594,951 8913117 9772003 4,350,000 23,035,210
Wyoming 84,932,422 19,004,013 0 0 19,004,013
Crow Tribe 1,531,061 454,886 0 0 454,886
Hopi Tribe 1,539,117 438,155 0 0 438,155
Navajo Tribe 7,043,152 3,563,921 L 0 73563921
Undist. Emerg. 0 0 0 845,339 845,339
Total $255,422,944 $69,654,366 $56,989,935 $9,089,339 $135,733,640
*The term "Distrubution” is now used instead of "Allocation." Allocation refers to the “pooling” of monies collected for the Abandoned Mine
Land Fund. State- and federal-share distribution amounts are based on formulae set forth in Directive AML-18 dated November 26, 1992,
Emergency distribution amounts are based on figures provided annually by the Assistant Director, Program Support, and as approved during
the year by the Deputy Director.

tion, to states with emergency pro-
grams.

Due to the dry weather conditions in
1995 the Office of Surface Mining
undertook fewer new emergencies
than in 1994. However, the workload
in the East continued to be heavy
because of the carryover projects. Of
the $7.2 million in disaster relief
funds appropriated for Kentucky in
1994, $2.6 million were carried into
1995.

In 1995, the average number of days
required for the Office of Surface
Mining to respond to complaints

(from notification of a possible
emergency problem) was 1.8 (a 15
percent improvement from 1994). The
total days from complaint referral to
construction averaged 26.6 days.
Compared with 1994, this represents
a 29 percent improvement in re-
sponse (a 10.8 day reduction from
complaint referral to construction).

Of the 594 emergency complaint
investigations referred by Office of
Surface Mining field offices, 135
resulted in a declaration of emergen-
cy, 211 were determined to be not of
an emergency nature, 77 were
considered not related to coal mining




or were reclaimed by the landowner,
and 171 were still under investigation
at the close of the fiscal year on
September 30, 1995. Non-emergency
mining-related complaints were
referred to the states for consider-
ation as high-priority abandoned
mine land grant projects.

Post-SMCRA Reclamation

As authorized in the 1995 appropria-
tions, federal civil penalties collected
under Section 518 of SMCRA were
used to reclaim lands mined and
abandoned after August 3, 1977. In
1995, the Office of Surface Mining
funded eight reclamation projects
costing a total of $611,857 in the states
of Arkansas, Georgia, Kentucky,
Oklahoma, and West Virginia. An
additional $501,180 in unobligated
funds will be carried over for use in
1996 reclamation projects.

Grants to States and Tribes
Beginning with
Texas in 1980,
the Office of
Surface Mining
has gradually
approved state
reclamation
programs.
Currently, all
primacy states
except Mississip-
pihave ap-

b proved aban-

95 doned mine land
reclamation programs. During 1988,
the Navajo and Hopi Tribe programs
were approved, and in 1989 the Crow
Tribe received approval for its
program. In 1995, the states and the
tribes received grants totaling
$162,487,240. Since 1979, when the
states began receiving abandoned
mine land administrative grants to
operate their programs and construc-
tion grants to complete reclamation
projects, $2,202,760,877 has been

Geologist Unice Tso is a geologist and was the
reclamation supervisor for the
Copper Mine Project. She was
responsible for on-the-ground rec-
lamation work completed by the
in-house Navajo construction crew
of the Tuba City, Arizona, Aban-
doned Mine Land Office.

the tribes

received grants

Located on Navajo land just east
of the Grand Canyon, the Copper
Mine Project contained open
shafts, dangerous highwalls, and
industrial waste associated with
abandoned copper mining. With
the reclamation complete, sourc-
es of water pollution and soil ero-
sion, as well as abandoned mine land hazards,
have been eliminated.

"In 1995,

the states and

totaling

$162,487,240."

distributed from the fund. State costs
for to administration grants, set-aside
and subsidence insurance programs,
emergency programs, and initial
program development and coopera-
tive agreement costs have been
reduced to less than 25 percent of the
total grant cost during the last three
years. Net grant awards for aban-
doned mine land construction
projects from grants
totaled $1.6 billion, and
construction obligations at
the state/tribe level
totaled $1.5 billion. Grant
amounts for 1995 are
shown in Table 11. On-
the-ground coal mine
reclamation accom-
plishments resulting from
grant funding through
1995 are summarized in
Table 12.

Simplified grant funding
of state abandoned mine
land programs was begun
in 1994. This new grant
application process eliminates the




State/Tribe

Emergency

TABLE 10
FEDERAL RECLAMATION PROGRAM PROJECTS
1995 OBLIGATIONS

Total

High Priority ~ 1978-94*

Total Total
Emergency High Priority

Prior Year Prior Year Total

Adj. in 1995* Adj. in 1995* 1978-1995*

* Includes prior year contract deobligations and upward adjustments.

Alabama $ 0 $ 13,934,015 $ 0 $ 0$ 13,934,015
Alaska 0 194,638 0 0 194,638
Arkansas 0 84,904 0 0 84,904
bicaiomia s 0 32868 . 11.067.181 0 (0] 1,100,049
Colorado 0 1,858,362 0 0 1,864,098
Georgia 529,875 2,086,126 0 (6,875) 2,609,126
lllinois 0 5,376,749 0 0 5,376,749
I Indiana 0 4029085 0 0 4,032,023
lowa 0 1,083,508 342 0] 1,084,065
Kansas 0 5,094,172 0 0 5,094,172
Kentud(y 0 76, 288,312 (54,076) 0 81,156,444
| Maryland w0 ipe2e938 0 0 2,626,938
Michigan 19,800 1,969,202 0 0 2,019,754
Missouri 0 8,013,564 0 0 8,033,947
Montana 0 729,058 0 0 729,058
| New Mexico ™ 0 2,364,696 0 0. 2,364,696
North Carolina 0 205,407 0 0 205,407
North Dakota 0 1,723,933 0 0 1,723,933
Ohio 0 18,443,205 0 18,415,430
. Oklahoma 0 tpros24 0 1,214,349
Oregon 0 42,275 0 42,275
Pennsylvania 0 87,656,576 0 91,441,862
__Rhode island 0 556,229 0 0 556,229
. South Dalota o, 27255 0 0 27,255
Tennessee 674 000 16,613,741 0 (258,904) 17,028,837
Texas 2,000 0 285,849 0 0 287,849
Utah \ o 0 123,791 0 0 123,791
Fovieginta i e e 101389469 (250) 0 10,139.469
Washington 12,000 676,579 4,803,194 0 (30,255) 5,461,518
West Virginia ] 0 29,023,226 0 0 29,023,226
‘ Wyoming - 0 0 1,067,101 0 0 1,067,101
Cheyenine River SiouxTribe = 0. 00,000, | 2712872 S0 0. 2812,372
Crow Tribe 0 0 1,097,895 0 0 1,097,895
Fort Berthold Tribe 0 0 69,972 0 0 69,972
Fort Peck Tribe 0 0 147,991 0 0 147,991
Hopi Tribe « 0 1,263,409 0 0 1,263,409
Jacairillo ApacheTnbe 0 0 50,998 0 0 50,998
Navajo Tribe 0 0 2,222,792 0 0 2,222,792
Northern Cheyenne Tribe » 0 4,992 580,005 0 0 584,997
SouthemUteTribe. . 09 e 94208 o 0 94,206
Rocky Boy Tribe 0 0 60,188 o] 0 60,188
Uintah/Ouray Tribe 0 0 138,738 0 0 138,738
Ute MountainTri 0 0 14,300 0 0 14,300
| White MountainAj be .0 0 1838 (of 0 1,838
Wind Riwer Tribe 0 0 73 267 0 0 73,267
Zuni Tribe 0 0 125,009 0 0 125,009
Total $8,788,444 $2,038,114 $307,375,235 ($84,580) ($296,034)$31 7,821,179

requirement for advance approval of
each reclamation project before the
grant is awarded to the state. States
receive amounts based on appropriat-
ed spending levels and are held
accountable for using those funds in
accordance with their approved
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abandoned mine land plan. The
Office of Surface Mining is no longer
involved in cumbersome and detailed
pre-award scrutiny of state grant
applications.

Minimum Program

The minimum-level program was
established by Congress in 1988 to
ensure funding of existing high-
priority projects in states where the
annual allocation is too small for the
state to administer a program and
begin reclamation.




This new grant

During 1995, Alaska, Arkansas, Iowa,
Kansas, Maryland, Missouri, New
Mexico, North Dakota, Oklahoma,
and Utah were eligible for minimum-
level program funding and received
such grants during the year. Mini-
mume-level program funding was
reduced from $2,000,000 to $1,500,000
for 1995. Eligible states and tribes
received $8,048,356 in contributions
from non-minimum program states
and tribes for federal-share money in
1995. These contributions bring the 10
states and tribes to the minimum
program level. Once minimum-
program states and tribes complete
their high-
priority projects
listed in the
National Inven-
tory of Aban-
doned Mine
Land Problems,
annual funding is
limited to state-
share money.

a}fplimtion
process eliminates

the Tequirement

State Set-Aside
Beginning in
1987, Public Law
100-34 autho-
rized states to set
aside up to 10
percent of the
state-share portion of their annual
abandoned mine land reclamation
grants. Set-aside money was deposit-
ed into special trust funds and
became available, along with interest
earned, for use by the state for
reclaiming abandoned mine land
problems after August 3, 1992, the
original expiration date for the
collection of abandoned mine land
reclamation fees. (Subsequent legisla-
tion has extended this date to Sep-
tember 30, 2004.) Statutory amend-
ments contained in Public Law 101-
508 created a new set-aside program
that does not supersede the transfer
funds deposited under the original
1987 program. The funds set aside

[ for advance
approval of each
}rroject."

under the new program were avail-
able for use beginning in 1996, and
only to reclaim eligible priority 1 and
2 abandoned coal mine land prob-
lems. In 1995, nine states and one
tribe set aside $5,882,154.

Subsidence Insurance

Public Law 98-473 authorized states
and tribes with approved reclamation
programs to use abandoned mine
land funds to establish self-sustain-
ing, individually administered
programs to insure private property

r*—*"—»*h

against damage caused by land
subsidence resulting from abandoned
underground coal mines. Implement-
ing rules were promulgated in
February 1986. Under those rules,
states can receive a subsidence
insurance grant of up to $3,000,000,
awarded from the state’s share of the
abandoned mine land fund. In 1995,
no subsidence insurance grants were
issued. Through 1995, the Office of
Surface Mining has granted a total of
$11,699,247 to Colorado, Indiana,
Kentucky, Ohio, West Virginia, and
Wyoming.

'[ABLE b}
ABANDONED MINE LAND GRANTS TO PRIMACY STATES AND INDIAN TRIBES
1995

State/  Subsidence  10% Program N 1995 1994

Tribe  Insurance Set-Aside Administration’ Project Costs’® Emergency6 Total Total
Alabama § 0 $ 0 $ 616098 § 2,806,669 $ 400,000 $ 3,822,767  $ 3,828,092
Alaska 0 0 225,685 1,297,715 25,000 1,548,400 2,110,000
Arkansas 0 0 406,419 1,338,055 13,000 1,757,474 2,385,146
Coloradali 10200000 - BBRT00 A BD2 300 0 2240000 2,000,000
llinois 0 0 903,859 8,248,552 561,000 9,713,411 10,333,658
Indiana 0 610,756 955,073 7,008,865 310,000 8,884,694 5,145,404
lowa 0 0 172,945 1,384,659 . 0 1,557,604 2,081,635
Kansas 0 0 140,987 1,790,245 < 460,000 2400232 3173452
Kentucky 0 0 917,090 15,002,534 0 15,919,624 19,985,610
Louisiana 0 0 89,066 0 0 89,066 146,743
Marylandz 0 61,261 510,943 2,398,985 0 2,971,189 2,615,016
Missouri 0 6843 aegry 1,614,398 o 0 2,158,510 2,628,907
Montana C 0 345,089 509,144 5,883,487 125,000 6,862,720 4,767,586
New Mexico 0 142,660 1,155,942 344,000 0 1,642,602 2,186,551
North Dakota 0 113,682 285,904 1,895,093 50,000 2,344,679 3,832,712
Ohio - .0 L0 pdAoRBAL | 4433b14 . 304,387 9,643,442 6,649,235
Oklahoma 0 0 289,165 1,252,234 0 1,541,399 2,271,000
Pennsylvania? 0 2,115,658 4,807,239 18,115,267 0 25,038,164 41,061,426
Texas 0 0 299,120 o 0 299,120 5,087,820
Utah 0 a0 . 405308 1535465 0 1,960,770 2,481,187
Virginia® 0 0 1,739,815 2,735,829 1,100,000 5,575,644 6,160,793
West Virginia® 0 1,868,521 5,605,012 19,746,193 4,350,000 31,569,726 46,609,129
Wyoming 0 0 480,333 19,338,829 0 19,819,162 20,572,274
CrowTribe 0 0. 2%k 441,530 0 671,168 12035795
Hopi Tribe 0 0 191,860 0 0 191,860 105,000
Navajo Tribe 0 356,392 750,007 1,157,414 0 2,263,813 5,564,987
Total $0 $5,882,154 $25,134,867  $120,971,832  $10,498,387  $162,487,240 $205,819,158

1 Funding for these grants is derived from the FY 1995 Distribution and funds recovered or carried over from previous years. Downward adjustments of prior-year
awards are not included in the totals.

2 These 10% set-aside amounts are for acid mine drainage set-aside funding rather than future set-aside funding.

3 Administrative amount includes $138,937 for coalbed mapping grant.

4 Administrative amounts for most states/tribes contain y indirect costs which are applicable to their entire Abandoned Mine Land program. These costs
cannot be broken down into separate cost categories.

5 The term *Project Costs® is now used instead of *Construction.” Abandoned Ming Land simplified grants do not contain specific construction cost breakouts, but
rather list all costs associated with a construction project as a project cost. This category contains both non-water supply and water supply project costs.

6 This category contains emergency project, administrative, and indirect costs. Indirect costs are not directly attributable to either emergency project or
administrative costs.




Inventory of Abandoned Mine Land
Problems

SMCRA, as amended by the Aban-
doned Mine Reclamation Act of 1990
(Public Law 101-508), requires the
Office of Surface Mining to maintain
an inventory of eligible abandoned
coal mine lands that meet the public
health, safety, and general welfare
criteria of Section 403(a)(1) and (2).
During 1995, this inventory was
maintained and updated to reflect
reclamation accomplishments as
required by Section 403(c).

The Office of Surface Mining main-
tains its inventory on the Abandoned
Mine Land Inventory System
(AMLIS), a computer system that
provides reports of problems eligible

Calif. CERT®
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for funding, estimated reclamation
costs, and reclamation accomplish-
ments. During 1995 states and Indian
tribes began managing their data
using direct electronic entry.

As of September 30, 1995, the system
contained information for 12,858
problem areas, mostly related to
abandoned coal mines. A problem
area is a geographic area, such as a
watershed, that contains one or more
abandoned mine problems that could
logically be corrected together.
Problem area boundaries are delin-
eated by the extent of their effect on
surrounding land and water, not just
the abandoned mine sites. Since the
beginning of the Abandoned Mine
Land program, nearly $1.2 billion

TABLE 12
ABANDONED MINE LAND COAL RECLAMATION ACCOMPLISHMENTS

1978-1995

Colo. Crow Ga. Hopi

Ala. Alas. Ark.
Priority 1 & 2 (Protection of Public health, Safety, and General Welfare)
Clogged Streams' 2 [} 0
Clogged stream lands? 117 0 0
Dangerous highwalls® 119,200 960 32,706
Dangerous fmpoundmentst 2 3 o0
Dang(erot]s‘ piles & embank.? é1 » 8' 164
Dangerous slides? 8 0 0
Ggsss:hazardgus/emlosive‘ 0 0 [
Undarground mina fires? 0 0. 0
Hazardods equip. & facilities* 445 57 1
Hazardous water bodies* 42 0 9
Industrial/residential waste? 3 12
Poralst - ' 8 6
Polluted water: agriculturat 0 ]
Polluted water: human con.* 12 0 0
Subsidence? 10 0 3
Surtace burnifig!. i ey
Vertical opening* 274 5 65
Priority 3 (Environmental Restoration)
Bench? 1" 0 0
Industrial/residential waste? 9 0 0
Equipment/facilities* 8 [¢] 0
. Gonpiley e g 0
Highwalis® 22,175 0 ]
Haul roads? 1 0 0
Mine openings* 45 0 0
Pitgt . 1.0 0
Spoit area? 7,784 0 o
Sturry? 8 9 0
Slump? 8 25 0
- Water problers® 292 0 0

S0 0 08 O 0O © G0 O O

1 [¢] [¢] 0 0 14 14
] 0] 0 o] 0 592 106
7,170 51,493 650 1,000 14,302 15,685 84,585 46,

oo o s : s 8 o] 5
a5 7 33 3 0 107 484
[4] 0 22 0 0 2 1
0 0 0o 0 0 8 3

0. a0 6. b o5 o
6 1 1 V] 8 195 a5
30 0 0 0 0 1 2
9 2 1] 0 0 13 21
72 s 4 85 9 ' 108 41
0 3 1 0 0 0 6
1] 0 0 1 0 1 6
35 46 16 1 0 8 35
o g 0 g
18 256 4 8 2 364 251
0 3 2 0 [s] 1 0
0 5 0 0 0 13 53
2 7 0 0 0 94 103
4 o 19 3 281508 80
1,500 2,028 1,880 0 551 4,510 3,430
(4] 0 12 o 15 89 32
1 18 0 2 0 87 18
7 83 7 0 10364 58
80 829 23 0 10 1,840 1,156
0 0 1 0 0 1,087 382
0 4] 2 [¢] 0 1 2
i o 0 0 gm0 e

Units: 1 Miles; 2 Acres; 3 Linear feet; 4 Count; 5 Gallons/minute; 6 CERT is the Council of Energy Resources Tribes

4
245
035
3
710
0
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was spent for completed projects and
$280.2 million for ongoing coal
projects. Of these problem areas,
10,625 were pre-SMCRA coal sites
with health, safety, and general
welfare problems, of which 5,690 (53
percent) have been reclaimed. The
estimated cost to reclaim the remain-
ing 4,935 high-priority problem areas
is $2.5 billion.

Table 12 summarizes state, emergen-
cy, and federal coal reclamation
project accomplishments through
1995. In comparing figures reported
between 1994 and 1995, most catego-
ries show increases. In a few cases,
totals decreased. These changes
reflect the continued efforts by the
Office of Surface Mining, the states,

Ky. Md. Mich. ~ Mo. Mont.

1 34 3 0 11 3
1 7,932 41 0 1,177 2
63,731 14,299 26,880 950 52,212 150
1 B2 0 9 5 3
104 » 222 99 0] 352 62
1 1,655 17 0 [} 1
1] Q 0 0 0 )
0 & 0 o 2 63
2 138 12 5 24 175
2 16 9 2 10 o]
12 49 15 0 69 74
0 1am 17 0 1wo7s
3 5 3 0 29 17
0 2,890 1 0 13 12
28 54 9 1 0 392
3008 6 8 19 302
8 64 2 12 33 430
0 619 4] 0 0 1
)] 0 0 0 3 76
1 51 1 1 4 58
88 17 iy 24 73 148
3,200 2,000 3,650 0 9,624 1,170
[4] 1 1 1 1 1
0 68 0 4] 0 42
7.3 0 i 76 18
273 576 212 10 1,058 856
10 58 0 0] 69 0
0 10 1 11 1 19
0 o 70 0 88 0 241

32




and the tribes to improve the quality
of the information. In some cases it
was found that the data for sites
reclaimed under more than one
reclamation funding program had
been inadvertently duplicated, or
other errors had occurred. These
figures have been corrected.

Reclamation Awards

After more than 18 years of aban-
doned mine land reclamation funded
under SMCRA, thousands of danger-
ous health and safety problems
throughout the country have been
eliminated. To enhance communica-
tion about achievements in aban-
doned mine land reclamation, the
Office of Surface Mining has present-

ed awards to those individuals
responsible for their completion. This
year, 108 individuals responsible for
nine award-winning projects were
recognized for their work. Awards
for the following projects were
presented at the National Association
of Abandoned Mine Land Programs
annual meeting:

Director’s Award:

B Meadow Creek Project, Monterey,
Tennessee, for eliminating acid
mine drainage.

National Awards:
M Aladdin Coal Tipple Interpretive
Site, Aladdin, Wyoming

B Summit Reclamation Project,
American Fork Canyon, Utah

TABLE 12 (Continued)

1978-1995

Ohio  Okla. Ore. Penna. R.s. S.Dak. Tenn.

Navajo N.Car. N.Dak N.Mex.
Priority 1 & 2 (Protection of Public health, Safety, and General Weifare)
Clogged Streams! 0 0 0 0 12 1 0 16 0 0 0 0
Clogged stream lands? [4] 0 0 0 4,327 0 0 43 1] o 147 )
Dangerous highwalls® 0 0 25,596 0 26,007 153,909 0 371,387 ) 135 16,255 3,285
| Dangsious Wbbiinimentss 0 g e 5 N 0 s '
" Dangerous piles & embank 2 1 0 303 2 % 0 0 0 200 987
Dangerous slides? 7 0 35 0 306 [ 0 0 a1
Gases:hazardous/explosive* 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
' Undergrolind mins fres! . e 0 8 e
Hazardous equip. & facilities® 4 o 14 13 . e 0 4 25
Hazardous water bodies* 0 0 13 0 4 0 0 0
Industrial/residential waste? 1 0 2 0 34 0 0 0
SPotalst o 0 b s
Pollin)ed‘ walter: agricultural* ) 0 ] ( 1 0 0 o 0
Poliuted water: human con.* 0 0 ] 1 3 0 [
Sl.’lbsidencez 5 0 1,070 29 42 (] 1
| siface blrding 3 0 4w e s
Vertical opening® 7 5 78 ‘ 80 134 1 10( 18
Priority 3(Environmental Restoration)
Bench? 1 0 0 2 [s] 0 ) 14 [¢] 0 76
Industrial/residential waste? 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Equipment/facilities* 2 0 0 11 3 0 0 15 0 0 15
CGobplest 0 A g 0 a e g g ame oy ga
Highwalls® 0o 0 0 0 9220 o0 0 3,958 o o0 130
Haul roads? 10 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 8
. Mine openings* 43 0 0 4 19 ' 1 16 0 0 0
e W70 ob 2 0 B o o 4
Spoil area? 184 0 0 2 a2 0 o 1011 o 0 a’s 152
Slurry? 0 0 4] 2 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0
Slymp’ ) 0 0 0 0 [} 0 0 26 4] 0 3 0
 Walerprobiomst e 0 9 g e

Units: 1 Miles; 2 Acres; 3 Linear feet; 4 Count; 5 Gallons/minute; 6 CERT is the Council of Energy Resources Tribes

Texas

B oo omooonmo o

© o0 o olm o o o

0o 27 1 215 202

0 149 0 15,647 15,129

0 124,829 8,011 1,272,745 1,084,487

P e

3 218 500 | 7,831 7516

0 294 (4} 2,478 2,247

0 0 3 0 33 29
S e W el s

191 4 204 15 2,074 2,001

0 1 V] 1 0 369 338

2 2 0 24 1 401 375
L ias,zl* 7154 6670
é 0 o] 7 0 99 99

0o 9% 6 0 3,052 2,971

5 4 6 181 278 4,431 4,284
e 1288 i108
23 84 56 63 187 2,944 2,838
4 0 0 V] 0 720 708

7 1 [v] 0 11 179 172
58 21 0 0 3 458 421
e ) R 4053
‘550 1] 0 13,850 1,300 84,726 70,663
1 (4] 0 1 188 116

0 21 . 0 1 4 391 305

v 0 0 6 10 789 632

49 3 V] 7 386 18,088 15,843
1 ) 0 0 0 1,628 1,389
16 ‘0 0 0 0 125 138
20 a9 0 dac0002 | 491818 | a9ines

M City of Mines Project, Indepen-
dence Mine and Mill, Victor,
Colorado

B Gage Mine Safeguard Project,
Deming, New Mexico

W Middle Fork Duck Creek Water-
shed Project, Caldwell, Ohio

M Rattlesnake Reclamation Project,
Chattanooga, Tennessee

M North Fork Watershed Project, Flat
Gap, Virginia, and

B Rock Springs Subsidence Abate-
ment and Public Utility Repair,
Rock Springs, Wyoming.

ABANDONED MINE LAND COAL RECLAMATION ACCOMPLISHMENTS

Wash. W.Vir. Totalusesy Totalises




U.S. Department of the Interior

Office of Surface Mining Reclamation and Enforcement -
" STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

- AS OF SEPTEMBER 30,

Entlty Asseis /
~ Intragovernmental Assets: G ‘ ,
Fund Balances with Treasury (Note a2 .
Accounts Receivable, Federal (Note 34) e - 10,841
| Investments (Note 4) | - 1,292,066
~ Governmental Assets: L . ,
. Accounts Receivable, Net, Non~Federal (Note 3B) o . 12,675
‘Advances and Prepayments, N0n~Federal - 54
Cash (Imprest) . ' 21
.. Property, Plant andﬁEq‘ulpment Net (Note 8 o 5,610

NQn—Entlty Assets:
. Govemmental Assets {from all other sources) . .
/ Resources Transferable to U.S. Treasury | (Note SC)‘ _

BILITIES

abilities Covered by Budgetary Resources
_ Intragovernmental Liabilities:

Gavernmental Liabilities: . . P .
Accounts Payable, Non-Federal o e 10083
. Accrued Payroll and Benefits L - . 2,050
o Deferred Revenue,{Non—Fed‘eral (Note 6) : . . 0

1ab1hﬂes nnt Cavered by Budgetary Resaurces
- Intragovernmental Liabilities: o
- Other Federal Liabilities (Note BC) o 123
o Governmental Liabilities: .
~ Suspended Liabilities, Non-Federal (Nate 7) - e 1,188
xves ACCmed Leave DLV e i e . . o ‘ o 4 944

Balances (Note8) = ‘ . . ,
~ Unexpended Appropnatmns : . 356,960
- Invested Capital = s - 5610
- Cumulative Results of Operatxons 0 1,000,910
“Fundmg Requirements o - (4,944)

- 1995

_ Accounts Payable, Federal L vl 145

o228

o 1398836

$64,186
78
1,175,384

13,651

L

.......................................................

249
3,702

2,109
639

1,169

4,420
e

L e
Isms

382,474
5385
859,748

(4,468)

1289

$1,259,895

1994

oeds



8307533
237
1,568 -

3,007
69,291
256,385
11,990
- (6,266)

215932

57,293
23,749
7,095
2,722
1,450
1,415
468
8

. e

892
7,632

$299,426

1,070
188
1,931

40,085

249,135
4,408

®)

318567

325178

(2,106)

(182,386)

140,686

1243139

1,243,139

es Over ’I‘otal Expenses 140,686

s (Note 14) o ‘ (25,289)

286,254

(753)

1,157,120

 9msea

(9375)




u.s. Department of the lnterlor

Off‘ce of Surface Mmmg Reclamation and Enforcement
STATEMENT OF CASH FI.OW

FOR THE YEAR. ENDED SEPTEMBER 30

(In Thousands)

CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPE TING ACTIVITIES

$140,686 $95,394

Approprlatmns Expensed‘ . (307,533) (299426)

Decrease (Increase) in Accounts. Recewable . : (9,836) (1,317)

Decrease (Increase) in Other Assets . ‘ . 873 (243)
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable . . 5 5,578 (261)
Increase (Decrease) in Other Liabilities = (3,717)

_ Other Adjustments (Prior Year Adjustments) . 0
Total Ad]ustments : (314,635)

| et Cash.Pm‘"dffffl Wsed) by Op m’*’fns Adivites sy

CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY VESTING ACTIVITIES

Pun:hase of P’raperty, Plant and: Eqmpment . ‘, 4 o (271) - (761)
Sale of Securities (Note 5118915 6883375

Purchase of Securities (Note 4) (5,248,455) (6,971,060)
Other Investing Cash Prov1ded (Used) 12,858 9,365

CASH FLOWS FROM NANCING ACTIVITIES

Appropnatlons
Current Year Approprlatwns .
Appropnated Revenue

Add:

Transfers of Cash From Oth

Deduct:
Rescissions o
Withdrawals . ,

 TabeRdoomes . 0 0
Net Appmprlatlons

292,778 300,659
331 519

0 ' 7’;7,200

697 o 0
2,096 e e
e
282,378 290601 |

__ NetCash Provided (Used) by Financing Activities  2s237% 001

Net Cash Provided (Used) by 0peratmg, , o 5 ..
Non~0peratmg and Fmancmg Actwmes (8524 ~ 10561

Fund Balances with Treasury, Cash and Forelgn Currency, Begmnmg

. Fund Balances w1th Treasury;';')Cash and. Formgn Currency, Endlng




Department of the lnterlor

ﬁk ?of Surface Mi mng Reclamatlon and Enforcement

Resources

bandc)ned Mme Lan *?; i G ' $Z61,13Q
i and Technology ‘ e 110,272

1,146

$373,661

apltal Acquxsxtmns

Expendxtures for Soil Conservatmn Servme

‘ Accrued Expendltures 3
Less Renrﬂ:ursements and other Revenue

Aceroed Expendies Direct

3o3v0
109265
e

~ Reimbursed

ACTUAL

. Expenses

o $209.041
103,460

4449
814

$313 567

$318,567

1,163

322,143

3319




A. Basis of Presentatlon

These fmanmal statements have been prepated to report
the financial position and results of operations of the
Office of Surface Mining Reclamation and Enforcement

. _(OSM), as required by the Chief Financial Officers Act of
1990. The statements have been prepared from the books

and records of OSM 1 using the accrual basis of accountmg,
which recognizes the financial effects of transactions as .
they occur. In addition, the statements were prepared in
accordance with the form and content for entity financial
statements spec1fled by the Office of Management and

Budget (OMB) in OMB Buﬂetm 94-01, and OSM’s accountj 5

ing p011c1es

B. Reporting Entlty

The Office of Surface Mmmg was establlshed asa regula- '

tory agency in the Department of the Interior by Public

Law 95-87, also known as the Surface Mining Control and

~ Reclamation Act of 1977 (SMCRA). SMCRA was passed
by Congress on August 38,1977, and has since undergone

several revisions, the most recent being the Energy Policy

Act of 1992 (Public Law 102-486). Although SMCRA
initially empowered OSM with the authority to collect a
 statutory coal reclamation fee through FY 1992, the 1992
revision extended t]rus authonty through the year 2004.

» 'Iihe purpose of thls fee Ls to fund among other thmgs, the .

reclamation of coal mines abandoned prior to August3,
1977. OSM’s mission is further defined by SMCRA to
include adrmmstermg programs designed to (1) protect

. society and the environment from the effects of coal ,
mining operatlons, (2) reclaim existing and future mined

areas which pose both a hazard to public health and safet}{\f .

and affect the quality of the nation’s natural resources,
and (3) provide technical and financial assistance to states
wlth primary regulatory authorlty over ]unsdlctlonal coal
mmmg act1v1t1es .

Budget authonty of funds appropnated for SMCRA is
vested to OSM, which is also responsible for the adminis-
trative over31ght and. pollcy direction of the program,
OSM.is required by the U.S. Department of the Treasury
(U.S. Treasury), the General Accounting Office (GAQ),
and OMB to report on the accounting for SMCRA funds.
The U.S. Treasury acts as custodian over all monies
appropriated and collected by OSM except for nnprest
funds. \ ,

. expendlture accounts used to record fmanczal transac« .
_ tions arising from congresswnal‘ appropnatmns to spend

_ of state administrative gr
~ mentfacilitating the transfer of reclamation expertise to
 India, an
forfelture for th fpurpose of re

. AML funds can be usec

. Qtl;tgt~~ = These are temporary holdmg accounts for =

L ‘ ‘Recetpt Funds = The Offi

., general revenue This category st

reeearch‘and develop—

the partial fmenemg of all OsM eperatlons
and maintenance Co:
,. annual bas;Ls

Rgclamgtigg Prggg ams - Funds for these programs come
from revenues collected from excise taxes (Trust Fund) o
_ civil penalty assessments, and  perforn g

‘i,;;tf‘;fees are used solely to finance the Abandoned Mine
. Land (AML) Reclamation program However, befo

; 'Im:estment szd - Available 'I‘rus’c Fund balanees,
 excess of current cash: requirements, are regularly

. invested in non-marketable federal secunt:ee as
authorlzed under Pubhc La 01-508 '

_ resources pending distribution. Also included in this
category are OSM’ ,imfunded contmgeneles and
*capltahzed assets . . .

ecei pts ;:v;;,:

‘escrow, and proceeds from the sale of vehicle

. _ Vehicle proceeds, which are reserved excluswely for

. the purchase of repiacement vehicles, are not treated
asearned untll replacement vehlcles are acqmred

of Surface Mining’ s fmanmal -
. statements include: (1) ‘nuscellaneous ]udu:lal servme
,,ffees, (2) fmes, (3) admmxstrauve fees, (4) mlscella- -
~neous receipts, (5) interest, and (6) unclaimed momes
which are credited annually to the U.S. Treasury’s |

'~ general govemment fund. In the billing and collection

' ,‘\of these funds, OSM is merely actlng asaco echon




otes to Combined Financial §tétéments Continued

agent for the U.S. Treasury. The Statement of Finan-
ial Position includes receivables and an off ttmg
habxlzty to the U.S. Treasury.

\ppropriations Financing sources are provxde

through congressional appropriations on both an annual -

_and no-year basis. They are realized each fiscal year to
tthe extent the funds have been expended .

Other Revenue Revenue is also reahzed when earned

but not collected based on recorded accounts receivable.

 Therefore, the only noncash expenses not funded by
revenue are those requiring future funding, such as
earned but unused annual leave. This ¢
be funded with future appropriations.

. Assessments

The Bond Forfeﬁure Fund receives operat:mg authonty
ased on revenue provided from forfeited performance
bonds. This fund is used to reclai *
pemfm to the forfeited bond.

The Civil Penalty Fund receives appropr1
, _}from assessments levied against permittees who violate
‘any permit condition or any other provision of Title 30

U.S.C. 1268, This fund is used to reclaim lands adverse- ' o
" These statements are not intended to report OSM’
- pmportlonate share of the federal deflcxt The Ofﬁce f.
Surface Mining funds its operations and maintenance -
from the Regulation and Technology and AML . appropria-
 tions. While financing for the AML program is provided

ly affected by coal mining practxces on ot after August 3,
1977 , 2

3. Abandoned Mine Land Fees (AML) ' .
.~ The Abandoned Mine Land programis funded by a

 reclamation fee assessed on coal mine operators. The
_ fee is based on the type and volume of coal produced

- for sale, transfer, or use. As appropnated by Congress,

- monies received and deposited in this trust fund are
used to reclaim lands adversely affected by coal mmmg
. that took place prior to August 3, 1977 ,

Sinceits inception, SMCRA has requlred that half of the

AML reclamation fees be distributed to the state of
origin as the state share. The.distribution formula has -
~ historically been based on each state’s portion of the

 AML reclamation fees, late payment interest, and post~
- accounts is calculated quarterly based upon OSM’

~judgment interest. However, effective with FY 1992,
legislation altered the state-share distribution formula,
_ The revised state-share distribution is based on AML
_ reclamation fees alone. All remammg funds are deslg»-
_, nated as the federal share.. L

ample would ‘ |
.. D Ce’ntrahzed Federal Flnancing Activities ~

lands that are site-

4 Transfefé’ln/’l?ransfers Out

. The Office of Surface Mining annually transfers a.
 portion of its AML -appropriations to the Department of

Agriculture’s Soil Conservation Service for admm ster-

_ing the Rural Abandoned Mine Program. .

of OSM’s approprlated funding uthority to anothe

federal agency is reported on the Statement of Cash
TFlow as a deducnon from Fmancmg Acn .

-~57The Off1ce of Surface Mining also. adnrumsters and
accounts for financial activity affecting no-year funds .
which, in earlier years, had been transferred to OSM
from the U.S. Department of State (India Fund). The
purpose of the India transfer was to fund research and
_ development of India’s reclamation program within the
’ framework of SMCRA. & o

The Office of Surface Mmmg s financial activiti
with and are dependent on the financial activities of the
centralized management functions of the federal govern-

_ment that are undettaken for the benetfit of the whole

federal government. These activities include pubhc debt

and employee retirement, life insurance, and health
- benefit programs. A
‘ments do not contain the results of centra

dingly, OSM s fmanc; stat v
lized financial
decisions and activities performed for the benefit of th

‘ whole govemment

by appropriated Abandoned Mine Land fee collections

~ held in trust, financing for the Regulation and Technology .

program may be from tax revenue, pubhc errowmg, ora
combmatmn of both. :

E Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

: The folce of Surface Mmmg uses two d1fferent methodol« :‘ v

ogies to recognize bad debts arising from uncollectible
accounts receivable. The net of the allowance method,
which was revised effective the fourth quarter of FY 1992

is used for trust fund and civil penalty accounts receiv-

able, Under this method, an allowance for doubtf

experience in successfully collecting delinquent accounts
receivable by aging category. OSM's allowance methodol-
ogy is representatwe of the collectability of de]mquent

~debt.




nat

Unobligated
Avallable: "R

nquen

H. Dlstrlbutmn of Appropriation for Reclamati . heame o S

G t Receivable Ace
rants

7881
8,399
12020

AML appropria on base 19 - 2
production prior to 1978,

million minimum program fc

projects that would not

Total  Delinquent  Allowance fo
Accounts te% qunts Doubtful

Receivab

Judg ctual ;
Additional supplemental state‘ ents ar presented aft
-these notes.




Iﬂhgte 4, Inveggmentg.

ffectlve October 1, 1991, the Office of Surface Mlmng
OSM) was given authority to invest available AML trust -
funds in non-marketable federal securities under P.L. 101-
08. The Bureau of Public Debt is the sole issuer of
uthorized non-marketable federal securities, which are
purchased by OSM directly from the U.S. Treasury OsM
ay invest in bills, notes, bonds, par value special issues,
and one-day certificates. There are no restrictions on
deral agencies as to the use or convertibility of Treasury
on—marketable securities,

Presently, all earnings from AML mvestments are rein-
ested, thus providing a source of continuous funding to
further enhance AML Trust Fund equity. However, with
the enactment of P. L. 102-486 on October 24,1992, and
effective with FY 1996, OSM will be required to transfer
annually up to $70 million in interest earned from the
myested AML trust funds to the United Mine Workers of
America Combined Benefit Fund. These AML investment
roceeds will then be available to provide health benefits
for certain eligible retired coal miners and their depen-
\ edents

\ When previously 1ssued Treasury bills are purchased by

- OSM, the unamortized (discount) or premium is calculat-
ed by Treasury at the time of purchase. As of September
11995, OSM’s outstanding investments in Treasury non-
marketable securities consisted of;

Amortized Inveshnenf
Discount  Net(in thousands) :

Cost/Market

fl‘y?pe of Invesrment Value (in thousands) .

asury Bill $1,292.066 S s
' The Cash Flow Statement for FY 1994 was reétated to
show the total purchases and sales instead of the cumu1a~

ive changes for that reporting year.
ot . Property, Plant and ipment Ne

All property and equipment are valued at cost. Property
and equipment are capitalized whenever the initial
cquisition cost is $5,000 or more and the estimated useful -
life is two years or longer. There is one exception: com-
puter software is not capitalized unless the acquxsmon

cost is $25,000 or more.

‘*leedAssets Depreciation . Service  Ad lsitlon Accumulated | Net Book
(in thousands) ethod Life alue Depreciation  Value

...................................................................................................................................................................

89, 645

Notes to Combined Financial Statements Continued

these funds are not use

Pension and Re’arement Plam' ‘

DP Equipment SL 15 $5165  $(1623)  $3502

ffice. Equlpment SL 11:20 1,481 (500) 981

ehicles SL 6-10 2 999 (1 912) 1,087 .
$ (4 035) 85610

The appropnahonvlaw covering forfelted bonds states that
collections are made avzilable for expenditure until the
bond site is reclaimed. In FY 1994, the revenue was
recogruzecl as Deferred Revenue at the time of the collec-
tion and revenue at the time reclamation expenses were
recorded. Based on new guidance from the Department of
the Treasury, the FY 1995 revenue was recogmzed at the
time of collectlon

‘ Note7 t rP blc abllll(’."

Suspended L1ab111t1es These are depomtﬁ received by
OSM that are held in suspense pending legal action,
1dent1f1cat10n, or other further action. These ‘deposits have
been identified as @ Reimbursable Advances receipts from
recipients of services yet to be performed (2) Other
Escrows permit fees held by OSM until the permit is
issued; (3) Civil Penalties Escrow funds collected from civil
penalties held in escrow pending any appeal processes
which will determine whether OSM will refund the

 collections or transfer the collections to appropriate

accounts for use by the federal government; (4) Cash held
by OSM, in lieu of performance bonds, until the coal

~ operator has fully reclaimed the spec1f1c bonded site; (5)

Vehicle Sale Receipts funds from the sale of vehicles are

_ made available for replacement vehicles. When new
vehicles are purchased, funds are transferred from sus-

pense to offset the cost of the replacement vehicles. If
Wlthm two years, the funds are

und for future :

Reunbursable Advances
Other Bscrows .
Civil Penalties Escrow
Bonds '
- Vehicle Sale Recelpls
= Other Deposits

Mining’s emplayees partmrpate in one of two government-

sponsored pension and retirement plans. The Civil

Service Retirement System (CSRS), the older of the two
plans, requires set payroll contributions by participating
employees. Participation in the Federal Employees
Retirement System (FERS) is required for employees hired
after December 31, 1983, and was offered as an option for

~ employees hired prior to that date, As part of its benefit
' package, EERS offers both a pension plan and a thrift

savings plan, which is  underwritten by employee contri-
butxons that are matched by OSM. .

41




Notes to Combined Financial Statements Continued ’

These statements do not report CSRS or FERS assets,
accumulated plan benefits, or unfunded liabilities, if any,
~applicable to OSM employees. The administration of
_government-wide pension and retirement plans rests

solely with the Office of Personnel Management (OPM).

All pension and retirement data is compiled and reported

by OPM.

The Office of Surface Mining’s FY 1995 contributions to
the CSRS and FERS pension plans were $2.2 million and

$1.5 million, respectively. In addition, OSM’s contribution

to the FERS thrift savings plan was $572,691 for FY 1995.

Note 8. Fund Balances (in thousands):

Reclamation Reg\f‘] atilon &

Programs Oth Total
Unexpended Appropriations:
Unobligated
Available § 47566 & 0 $ 0% 47566
Unayailable 0 14,883 0 14,883
Undelivered Orders 261,640 33,129 0 294,769
Unfilled Customer Ordérs (79) (179) 0 (258)
Invested Capital 0 0 5,610 5610
Cumulative Resilts of Operaﬁons 1000910 0 1,000,910 E
Euture Funding Requirements 0 0 (4,944) 4,944)
Total

Note 9. Revenues from Sales of Goods'and Services:

There are some types of receipts (e.g., reimbursable
agreements with states and other federal agencies) that are
recognized as revenues when earned. These revenues

may be used to offset the cost of producing the product or -

providing the service for which they are received.

Intragovernmental

Amount
{In thousands)

Federal Agentcies

General Services Administration $173
Ervironmental Protection Agency 27
Minerals Manageiment Service 21
National Park Service 10
Office of the Secretary 6
Total $237
Governmental
Kentucky
Indonesia
Miscellaneous
Total

42

Nogg 19, AML Interest:

~ A fmancmg source is recognized when interest is earned

~on delinquent AML fees. The interest is unavailable
- pending congressional action.

Note 11. Other Revenues and Financing §ourggsf

Accrual—based accountmg includes both collected and
uncollected revenue as a financing source:

0

Other Revenue and Financing Sources
(in thousands)

Administrative Revenue from AMI. fees
Vehicle Sales Revenue

Civil Penalty Revenue

Bond Forfeiture Revenue
Miscellaneous Receipts Revenue

Total

ati; s am:
‘Exp'enses incurred from funded appropriations by FY:

Operaung Expenses b ;y Prograni:

an thousands 1995 1994
AML $205,563 $192.570
R&T 103,460 105,359
Civil Penalty 295 ] 176
Bond Forfeiture 814 431
Other 0 0
Total

Interest expenseé’ paid under the Prompt Pay Act totalled $6,000 for all programs,

Expenses incurred paid to federal agencies or bureaus
(in thousands): .

Department of the Interior bureaus included:

Office of the Secretary $697
Bureau of Reclamation 139
U5 Geological Survey 110
Office of Aircraft Services 106
National Park Service 33
Minerals' Management Service 8
Bureau of Mines 2
Bureau of Land Management Ty n |
Total 51,097
Other Federal Agencies:

~ General Services Administration $8,158
U5 Postal Service 210
Government Printing Office 183
Other e B
Total . $8,688
GRAND TOTAL $9,785




Notes to Combined Financial Statements Continued

FECA
Accried Unfunded Lea

Net Transferstn.
Other Capitalized Expenses

Invested Capital Charige

Appropriated Capital
Unobligated Balance
Unliquidated Obligation
Undelivered Orders
Unfilled Customer Orders
Unliguiidated Obligations 17,302)
Appropriated Change

Net Non-Operating

‘Other capitalized expenses include losses, ade-ins, sales, and deletions.




Reclaniation’ Réguié

(In Thousands). &
Programs  Technology Other

ASSETS
Entity Assets: \ ‘
Intraggvernmental Assets ' . \ o
Fund Balances with U.S. Treasury . %2683 $51808 $55,679.
Accounts Receivable j - ~ 10841 0000 .0 s
Investments = . o 1099066 g 0 1292 066
Governmental Assets: ' . . o .
Accounts Receivable, Net, Non—Federal e 12638 .~ 37 0 12 675 .
Advances and I’repayments, N on~Federal 0 54 - . .
Cash (Imprest) 2 0
Property, Plant and Eqmpment Net - B

Non-Entxty Assets '
Governmental Assets (from all other sources):
~ Resources Transferable to Treasury

[ 1377,069 |

LIABILITIES =

Liabilities Covered by Budgetary Resources

Intragovernmental Liabilities: - . .
Accounts Payable, Federal S 5 .. 92 .

Governmental Liabilities: . .
Accounts Payable, Non-Federal o 7,615 2468
Accrued Payroll and Benefits - ‘ ‘ 544 ’ '
~ Deferred Reve:nue, Non»Federal o -

(s

10,083
2,050

Llabﬂl’aes not Covered by Budgetary Resources:
Intragovernmental Liabilities: . ‘
Other Federal Liabilities o 0 0 123 123
~ Governmental Liabilities; : ‘ - o .
Suspended Llablhtles, Non-Federal
L

NET POSITION =~

Balances o ‘ . s ’
Unexpended Approprlatmns ' ; 300127 < 47838 . L0 356, 960

. Invested Capital ' 0 g &5,619 5610

. Cumulative Results of Operations =~ ‘ 1,000,910 ' 0. 1 000 910

. LessFuture  Funding Requirements , 0 (4944)

sion 0 s 0 0087 apEss. . kes 1358536
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‘ Department of the Interior
Office of Surface Mining Reclamation and Enforcement
IP LEMENTAL STATEMENT OF
PERATIONS AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
R THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1995

Reclamation Regulation &

EVENUES AND FINANCING SOURCES
Appropnatlons Expe:nsed

Revenues from Sales of Goods and Services
Intragovernmental
. Governmental =
AML Interest, Non-Federal
. Investment Interest Earned, Federal
Revenue from Fees Assessed
Other Revenues and Fmancmg Sources

venue to the U.S Treasury

‘Grants Provided to States and Tribes

~ Personal Services and Benefits
‘Contractual Services
Rent, Communications and Utlhtles »
Travel and Transportation
Non-capitalized equipment.

- Supplies o
Printing and Reproduction

- Other Operatlng Expenses

Depreciation Expéhse .
Bad Debt Expense

Excess of Revenues and Fmancmg Sources
*_ Over Total Expenses Before Adjustments
Plus (Minus) Adjustments
Prior Period Adjustments
Inter~Fund Transfer

HANGE IN NET I’OSITION
' Net Position, Begummg Balance

Prior Period Adjustment Correcting Equity Position

- Net Position, Adjusted Beginning Balance
Excess of Revenues and Financing Sources
Over Total Expenses

Programs Technology Other Combined

$203,752

18
1,216
3,007

69,291

256,385

5,798
0

166,263
18,215
17,980

2,354
656
609
411
184

325,163

(1,616)

1,198,103
‘ 0
1,198,103

141,161
(29,227)

$103,061

46

$307,533

237
1,568
3,007

69,291
256,385
11,990
(6,266)

215932
57,293
23,749

7,095
2,722
1,450
1415
468
310,132

325,178

(490) (2,106)
82,386)

917 1,243,139
0 0
917 1,243,139

(475) 140,686
224 (25289)

1,358,536




\ WS, Department of the Interior
Office of Surface Mining Reclamation and Enforcement

SUPPLEMENTAL STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1995

(In Thousands) Reclamdtiop , Régﬂfation &

Programs = Technolos

Other . Combined

L (INMNITE: & % (RRIPIIIPI | RN - oo

CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

- $140,686

Excess of Revenues and Financing
Sources Over Total Expenses

Adjustments Affecting Cash Flow:

Appropriations Expensed (203,752) ~ (307,533)
Decrease (Increase) in Accounts Receivable < (9812 . . (9,836)
Decrease (Increase) in Other Assets 0 873
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable - 5,678

Increase (Decrease) in Other Liabilities

U e,

CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (3@1’)‘ o

, (271)
Sale of Securities 5118915 - 5,118,915
Purchase of Securities (5,248455) (5,248,455)
Other Investing Cash Provided (Used) 12858 - 12,858

2. (116,953) b
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Appropriations: o
Current Year Appropriations .0 209778
Appropriated Revenue 0 331
Add: .
Transfers of Cash From Others 0 0
Deduct: ¢ ¢
Rescissions ; 38 311 0 697
Withdrawals 0 20% 0 2,096
Transfers To Others ' 0 -

..........................................................................................................................................................................................................

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating,

Non-Operating and Financing Activities - (9,736) (8,524)
Fund Balances with Treasury, Cash, = -
and Foreign Currency, Beginning 12,440 64,224

seel il R A

oo

$2,704




United States Department of the Interior

OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL
Headquarters Audits

1350 Wilson Bowlevard "

Suite 401 FEB . 4 996

Arlingron. VA 20204

Memorandum

To: Director, Office of Surface Mining Reclamation and Enfo

From: Judy Harrison@ué&?/ Wm

Assistant Inspector General for Audits

Subject:  Report on the Office of Surface Mining Recl ion and Enf

Financial Statements for Fiscal Years 1994 and 1995

In accordance with the Chief Financial Officers Act of 1990, we audited the

accompanying Office of Surface Mining Recl ion and Enfor ’s financial
statements for the fiscal years ended September 30, 1994, and 1995. These financial
are the responsibility of the Office of Surface Mining Reclamation and

Enforcement, and our responsibility is to express an opinion, based on our audit, on
these financial statements.

Our audit was conducted in accordance with the "Government Auditing Standards,"
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and Office of Management
and Budget Bulletin 93-06, "Audit Requirements for Federal Financial Statements,"
and was completed on January 24, 1996. These audit standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
accompanying financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements and notes. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management. We
believe that our audit work provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Based on our audit, we found that the financial sta and panying notes
present fairly Surface Mining’s assets, liabilities, and net position; revenue, financing
sources, and expenses; cash flows; and budget and actual expenses. We also found
that these financial statements are presented in conformity with the accounting
standards and policies described in Note 1 of the Notes to Financial Statements.
Further, the suppl tal fi ial st were subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and are fairly stated in
relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

As part of our audit, we evaluated Surface Mining's internal control structure, tested
Surface Mining's compliance with selected provisions of laws and regulations, and
reviewed the financial information presented in Surface Mining’s overview. We also
reviewed Surface Mining’s most recent report, required by the Federal Managers’
Financial Integrity Act of 1982, and compared it with the results of our evaluation
of Surface Mining’s internal control stracture. However, because of inherent
limitations in any system of internal control, losses, noncompli or missta

may nevertheless occur and not be detected. We also caution that projecting our
evaluations to future periods is subject to the risk that controls or the degree of
compliance with the controls may deteriorate.

We found that Surface Mining’s internal control structure in effect on September 30,
1995, was sufficient to safeguard assets against loss from unauthorized use or
disposition; ensure that transactions were executed in accordance with laws and
regulations; ensure that transactions were properly recorded, processed, and
summarized; and provide reasonable assurance that any losses, noncompliance, or
misstatements that are material to the financial would be d d In
addition, we found that there were no material inst of nc pli with
selected provisions of laws and regulations for fiscal year 1995 that we tested, and
nothing came to our attention in the course of our other audit work to indicate that
material noncompliance with such provisions occurred. Further, we found that the
financial information in Surface Mining’s overview relating to the financial
statements is reliable and consistent with the information presented in the financial
statements.

Our review of the Office of Inspector General and U.S. General Accounting Office
audit reports related to the scope of this audit disclosed that there were no
significant unresolved and unimpl d recc dations that affected the
financial statements.




The Management cCouncil

Front row, left to right: Robert Ewing, Assistant Director, Finance and Administration; Mary Josie Blanchard, Assistant Director, Program Support; James

Joiner, Chief, Equal Opportunity Office; Robert Uram, Director; Nancy Smith, Chief, Office of Communications; Ed Kay, Deputy Director. Second row, left
to right: Vic Christiansen, Chief, Office of Strategic Planning and Budget; Allen Klein, Regional Director, Appalachian Regional Coordinating Center; Rick
Seibel, Regional Director, Western Regional Coordinating Center; and Brent Wahlquist, Regional Director, Mid-Continent Regional Coordinating Center.

ne outcome of the Office of

Surface Mining reorganization

was the creation of the Manage-
ment Council. The Council provides
a forum for discussing both near- and
long-term issues and solving prob-
lems that confront the Office of
Surface Mining. Council members
include senior managers from
headquarters and the agency’s three
regions. Since its creation in May
1995, the Council has been actively
involved in all Office of Surface
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Mining policy and decision making.

Counterpart Regional Management
Councils operate at the Regional
Coordinating Centers in Pittsburgh,
Alton, and Denver. The Regional
Councils, represented by the regional
director and the field office directors
in each region, focus on issues that
are unique and /or impact their
geographic areas. This two-level
council approach ensures broad input
of ideas that crosscut program areas

and include at all operational levels.

The Council has already achieved
significant success in making deci-
sions that have improved the efficien-
cy and effectiveness of the Office of
Surface Mining. Although the
Management Council is a simple
concept, this team approach has
unified the agency’s managerial
leadership and helped the entire
organization focus on meeting
common goals and expectations.
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Office of Surface Mining Directory

Locations of Office of Surface Mining offices as of January 31, 1996

. OSM Headquarters

" Robert J. Uram, Director

1951 Constitution Ave., NW
Washington, DC 20240

' (202) 208-4006

: Albuquerque Field Office

(Arizona, California, New Mexico, Navajo Tribe, Hopi Tribe,

and Ute Tribe)

Guy Padgett, Manager

505 Marquette Ave., NW, Suite 1200
Albuquerque, NM 87102

(505) 766-1486

Appalachian Regional

Coordinating Center

Allan Kiein, Regional Director
Three Parkway Center
Pittsburgh, PA 15220

(412) 937-2828

. AVS Lexington Office
. Larry Grasch, Acting Chief

1300 New Circle Road, NE, Suite 100
Lexington, KY 40505-4215

(606) 233-2792

. Ashland Area Office
. Jack Holbrook, Manager

Federal Bldg., Rm. 224

1405 Greenup Avenue, Box 5
Ashland, KY 41101

(606) 324-2828

Beckley Area Office
Jack Nelson, Manager

323 Harper Park Dr., Suite 3
Beckley, WV 25801

(304) 255-5265

Big Stone Gap Field Office
(Virginia)

Robert Penn, Director

1941 Neeley Road, Suite 201
Big Stone Gap, VA 24219

(540) 523-0001

Birmingham Field Office
(Alabama, and Mississippi)

Andrew Gilmore, Acting Director
135 Gemini Circle, Suite 215
Homewood, AL 35209

(205) 290-7282

Casper Field Office

(Idaho, Montana, North Dakota, South Dakota, Wyoming, and
Crow Tribe)

Guy Padgett, Manager

100 East B St., Rm. 2128

Casper, WY 82601-1918

(307) 261-6555

Charleston Field Office
(West Virginia)

Jim Blankenship, Director
1027 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, WV 25301
(304) 347-7158

Columbus Office

{Ohio, Michigan)

George Reiger, Manager
4480 Refugee Road, Suite 201
Columbus, OH 43232

(614) 866-0578

Harrisburg Field Office

(Massachusetts, Maryland, Pennsylvania, and Rhode Island)
Bob Biggi, Director

Harrisburg Transportation Center

3rd Floor, Suite 3C

4th and Market Streets

Harrisburg, PA 17101

(717) 782-4036

Indianapolis Field Office
(Indiana and lllinnois)

Roger Calhoun, Director
575 North Penn St., Rm. 301
Indianapolis, IN 46204

(317) 226-6700

Johnstown Area Office
Joe Geissinger, Manager

319 Washington St., Room 360
Johnstown, PA 15901

(814) 533-4223

Knoxville Field Office
(Georgia, North Carolina, and Tennessee)
George Miller, Director

530 Gay St., Suite 500
Knoxville, TN 37902

(423) 545-4103

Lexington Field Office
{Kentucky)

Bill Kovacic, Director
2675 Regency Road
Lexington, KY 40503
(606) 233-2896

London Area Office
Patrick Angel, Manager
P.O. Box 1048

London, KY 40743
(606) 878-6440

Madisonville Area Office
Michael Vaughn, Manager
100 YMCA Drive
Madisonvilie, KY 42431
(502) 825-4500

Mid-Continent Regional
Coordinating Center

(lowa, Kansas, and Missouri)

Brent Wahlquist, Regional Director
501 Belle Street

Alton, Illinois 62002

(618) 463-6460

Morgantown Area Office
Charles Sheets, Manager

75 High Street, Rm. 229

P.O. Box 886

Morgantown, WV 26507-0886
(304) 291-4004

Olympia Area Office

Glenn Waugh, Manager

711 South Capitol Way, Suite 703
Olympia, WA 98501

(206) 753-9538

Pikeville Area Office
Patrick Angel, Acting Manager
334 Main Street, Room 409
Pikeville, KY 41501

(606) 432-8145

Tulsa Field Office

(Arkansas, Louisiana, Oklahoma, and Texas})
Jack Carson, Acting Director
5100 E. Skelly Dr., Suite 470
Tulsa, OK 74135-6548

(918) 581-6430

Western Regional
Coordinating Center

(Alaska, Colorado, Oregon, Utah, and Washington)
Rick Seibel, Regional Director
1999 Broadway, Suite 3320
Denver, CO 80202

(303) 672-5505

Wilkes-Barre Area Office
Michael Kuhns, Acting Manager
20 N. Penn Ave., Room 3323
Wilkes-Barre, PA 18701

(717) 826-6333
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